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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRWOMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dear Shareholders. Customers and Partners!

The global economy in 2024 continues to be negatively affected by cautious fiscal and

monetary policies in various countries, unfavorable geopolitical factors, escalating military
conflicts, natural disasters, and extreme weather conditions, leading to a slow recovery in global
growth. Geopolitical risks remain the greatest threat, particularly the escalating conflicts in the

Middle East, which have disrupted energy and financial markets.To cope with these challenges,

many countries have proactively adjusted their policies to accelerate recovery and protect their
economies from unpredictable fluctuations, as well as intense competition from global rivals. The

United States-the world's largest economy-is also seen as experiencing a soft landing, with
inflation cooling but without falling into recession.The Fed's interest rate cuts have paved the way
for other countries to adjust their policies accordingly, easing pressure on the currencies of emerging

markets. Notably, the surge in the U.S. dollar, along with various negative developments, has

trigger-ed a wave of sell-offs in emerging-market currencies in favor of tbc USll and <-rthcr safer

assets.

Despite external uncertainties, Vietnam's economy continues to recover, driven by effective
inflation control policies, accelerated public investment, and improved trade activities. Vietnam's
GDP in 2024 is estimated to grow by 7.09%o, supported by strong trade groMh, record-breaking

foreign direct investment (FDI), and effective policy measures. Vietnam recorded a record trade

surplus of $19.1 billion, significantly contributing to economic growh and improving the balance

of payments. Meanwhile, FDI disbursement is estimated at $25.35 billion, up 9.4% year-over-year,

continuing to drive development. Expansive financial support policies and flexible monetary

policies have helped maintain a balance between inflation control and economic groMh, ensuring

macroeconomic stability. However, Vietnam's economy still faces numerous challenges and risks.

Credit growth remains sluggish, with bad debt risks rising and public investment disbursement

falling short of targets. The real estate market has shown signs of recovery but remains unclear,

while corporate bond repayments pose significant pressure. Exports are expected to face more

difficulties due to external factors. Additionally, exchange rate fluctuations and external inflationary
pressures remain potential risks affecting economic stability. Capital inflows into the economy and

investment channels have remained relatively low. Idle capital continues to flow strongly into the

banking system, reaching record levels, while investment in the stock market remains cautious.

preventing the VN-Index from breaking past the 1,300-point level. Despite this, the market still saw

over 72Yo groMh, with liquidity improving by 18.6% compared to2023. However, foreign investors

recorded a record net sell-off of 90.3 billion \rND, with large institutional withdrawals from major
stocks like Vinhomes and Masan.
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Vietnam's stock market (VN-lndex) is expected to maintain growth in 2025, although
volatility remains a key factor. Investor sentiment is improving, fueled by growing expectations that

Vietnam will be upgraded from a Frontier Market to an Emerging Market (EM) by 2026, as the

country has now met almost all FTSE uit"eria. The potential market upgrade is anticipated to attract
significant foreign investment inflows, especially as Vietnam's economy is forecasted to sustain

high growth. However, challenges persist, including uncertainties surrounding a possible Trump 2.0
dominance, global economic instability, inflation, and prolonged geopoiitical conflicts. Monetary
policies are unlikely to be further eased, and market profitability remains heavily reliant on banking
and real estate sectors, making strong profit surges across the board less likely. Recognizing both
opportunities and challenges, BOS must undertake a strong restructuring process to gradually

restore normal operations, fully optimize the company's activities, and enhance operational
efficiency and competitiveness. Successful restructuring will require full support from all
slrareholders. leadersltip. and emplo-vces, 2025 tntill he a pivolal vear tirr ROS as it'nalks tou,irr-cls

its goal of becoming a digital securities company by 2028. I firmly believe that with unity,
determination, and innovation, BOS will overcome current challenges and enter a new phase of
growth. Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors and Leadership of BOS Securities Joint Stock
Company, I would like to sincerely thank our valued customers, shareholders, partners, and

employees for their trust and continued support-both now and in the journey ahead.

Wish you good health and success!

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHAIR BOARD OF DIRECTOR
/
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GENERAL INFORMATION

company name: CONG TY cO IHAN CHLNG KHOAN Bos

Company name in English:BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Abbreviation name: BOS

Stock Code: ART

License of establishment and operation No. 85/

Commission on 03 103 12008

Charter capital: 969,225,090,000 VND (Nine hundr

twenty-five million, and ninety thousand dong)

.Headquarters: Floor 25,Office Building at265 Cau Giay, Dich Vong Ward, Cau Giay District,
Hanoi

Plrone: (84-24) 39 368 366

Fax: (84-24) 39 368 367

Website: www.bos.vn

Email: contact@bos.vn

History of fqundation and development

o 2008 - 2010: Artex Securities Joint Stock Company was officially established and operated

under License No. 85/UBCK - GP issued by State Securities Commission on 0310312008.

To be granted a certificate of depository membership; approved by the Hanoi and Ho Chi Minh
Stock Exchanges as a trading member.

. 2011: On 0810812011, the name of Artex Securities Joint Stock Company was changed to FLC
Securities Joint Stock Company (FLCS)

o 2012: Established a branch in Ho Chi Minh City under Decision No. 1I29/QD-UBCK.
o 2073: Changed the name of FLC Securities Joint Stock Company to Artex Securities Joint Stock

Company

. 2014: Completed the investment and operation of a new trading system to ensure the provision
of safe and modern trading facilities to customers.

o 2015:. Officially provided margin trading services after meeting the requirements of the

management agency and perfecting personnel and professional procedures.

o 2017: Listed on UPCOM exchange on 02/08/2017 .

Increased charter capital to 310.5 billion VND to carry out underwriting operations



. 2810912018: Officially listed on the Hanoi Stock Exchange (HNX) to start a new journey.

Completed the increase of charter capital to more than 969 billion VND to serve the
breakthrough development.

o 08/07/2019: Changed the name of Artex Securities Joint Stock Company to BOS Securities Joint
Stock Company;

BOS Securities Joint Stock Company officially put the derivative securities trading system into
operation.

Vision - Mission - Core Values

Vision

To become one of the leading securities companies in Vietnam by providing customers and
partners with professional and diversified services along with comprehensive financial solutions.

To constantly improve and develop a flexible, dynamic organizational structure, to promptly
invest in the most advanced technologies for the benefit of customers.

To build aleam of highly qualified professional human resources with in-depth knowledge and

extensive experience in providing financial services and investment consulting.

Mission

o Constantly improving and prioritizingthe interests of customers above all.

Core Values

o Integrity: Build the trust of customers, investors and partners working and cooperating with BOS
in the Vietnamese and intemational stock markets.

o Striving for Perfection: BOS aims for stable growth across three key areas: expanding brokerage
market share, strengthening M&A and corporate financial advisory activities, while continuing
to prioritize risk management and financial security.

o Continuous innovation: Continuously develop and perfect from practice, improve professional

knowledge and constantly develop business processes to bring customers the highest benefits.
. Cooperation: BOS provides a full range of securities financial services for individual investors

as well as professional financial organizations and institutions. Our target customers include
funds, organizations and businesses operating in various sectors such as manufacturing,
construction, real estate, banking, entertainment, media, energy, etc.
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BOS Securities Joint Stock Companyprovides a full range of securities services for individual
investors as well as professional financial organizations and institutions including: Underlying
securities brokerage services for individual and institutional customers, Investment Analysis and

Consulting Activities, Depository Services, Proprietary Trading Activities. Our target customers

include funds, organizations operating in various fields such as manufacturing, construction, real
estate, banking, entertainment, media, energy, etc.

BOS's core competitive advantage is its ability to provide customers and partners with
professional and diverse services along with comprehensive and effective financial solutions. We
always consider the interests of our customers as the core values that we constantly improve and
prioritize above all. These values are reflected through the essential principles of our operations:

Integrity, Striving for Perfection, continuous Innovation and cooperation.

With the orientation of becoming one of Vietnam's leading securities companies, we are

committed to continuously improving and developing a flexible and dynamic organizational

structure, rvhile investing in the latest advanccd tcchnologics to support our growth. Our goal is to
attract and build ateam of highly skilled prof'essionals with deep experlise and extensive experience

in providing financial services and investment advisory. We take pride in having established a

talented and experienced human resources, laying a strong foundation for future success.

PRODUCTS & SERVICES

Underlying sec urities services

With a team of professional, honest, and market-savvy experts, BOS provides customers with
products and services tailored to their investment goals and risk tolerance, helping them make well-
informed decisions-

Broker

With a modern information technology system and a team of experienced experts, BOS takes
pride in offering professional brokerage services with competitive, flexible, and diverse fees tailored
to different customer needs.

o Brokerage for trading stocks, fund certificates
o Brokerage for bond;

o Brokerage for other financial products.

Automatic Advance on Sale Proceeds: A service that automatically adds pending sale proceeds

to purchasing power and automatically initiates a loan when a buy order is matched.

4
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Securilies Depository

BOS provides securities custody services for investors including: Securities deposit, exercise of
rights, transfer, securities pledge, donation, inheritance of securities as well as odd-lot securities
transactions.

Investment Consulling

In order to support customers in investment activities, BOS with a team of experts with many
years of experience in the stock market has provided customers with investment consulting services

including:

. Consulting on building investment portfolios, restructuring investment portfolios in accordance

with each client in terms of term, proportion, expected profits and risk tolerance;
. Consulting on stock selection in each period; ,:
o Consulting on strategies and tactics ot'buying/selling listed stocks to help clients maximize

prolits and minimizc risks through direct consultation on the exchange, consultation via lG

email/phone/online software, etc.; PH

o Consulting through a system of reports and comments on the stock market j
daily/weekly/monthlv; stock analysis repofis; industry reports; gejneral report. Llpdate and
analyzemacroeconomic and business information; ;

o Organizing seminars and presentations on the stock market and investment opportunities in the

market.

Financiol Aid Services

With stable financial resources, BOS offers a diverse and flexible range of financial services,

tailored to different customer needs. BoS's financial services include:

. Margin trading: is a tool that uses leverage in securitjes investment activities to help customers

use the borrowed capital to buy more securities than their initial capital.
o Advance on sale proceeds: is a service that allows customers to use the proceeds from the sale

ofsecurities that have not yet been returned to their accounts.
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATION

Medium- and long-lerm developmenl slroleg)

The medium and long-term development strategy of BOS Securities Joint Stock Company is
to become one of the leading securities companies in the field of securities services in Vietnam.

Based on the principle of Safety - Flexibility
includes:

Efficiency, our development orientation

o Develop traditional products and services, and at the same time promote the research and

implementation of innovative financial products and solutions according to the investment

banking model;

. Opcratc artd dcvclup a syttcltt'uttous ald advanccd in.lornration technology system, ensuring

compatibility and smooth transactions;

o Develop a strict and effective risk management mechanism: closely follow the characteristics

of market movements at different cycles and stages of development;

Build closc and cxtcnsivc rclationships with sccurities companies, donrestic arrd ltireigri
financial institutions, ready to cooperate and share for the benefit of customers;

Streamlined, high-quality and efficiency-oriented personnel. Constantly training to improve
employee qualifications, developing and transparently announcing reward and punishment

mechanisms based on business results;

o Build a young, passionate, and friendly corporate culture, built on commitment and mutual
suppoft.

. Build a professional brand image, actively participate in community activities to promote the

image of a friendly and reliable organization.

Responsibilities for Society and Community

BOS Securities Joint Stock Company determines that associating business activities with
social activities is a responsibility, ethics and also the cultural foundation of the Company.

We believe that contributing to the development of the securities industry starts with fostering
a positive working environment and encouraging a positive lifestyle for our employees-both in
their professional and personal lives, as well as throughout their career journeys.

BOS Securities Joint Stock Company defines its development strategy based on the expertise

and capabilities of its team. Therefore, the company continuously enhances training, development,

and skill improvement for employees, while also investing in their health, well-being, and overall
quality of life. This approach motivates employees, unlocks their full potential, fosters personal

growth, and encourages them to contribute meaningfully to the company's success.



Responsibililies for lhe securities industry

With the goal of sustainable development, in addition to providing financial and securities

services, BOS Securities Joint Stock Company has actively supported and improved knowledge
and shared experiences for the investor community, through articles on the website and exchange

activities. The company fosters strong connections between the investor community, businesses,

market participants, and regulatory authorities to create a more informed and engaged investment
environment.

BOS Securities Joint Stock Company is committed to sharing insights and contributing
feedback, not only as a market participant but also as a bridge between investors and regulatory
authorities. By actively voicing investor concerns and engaging in policy discussions, BOS strives
to support the continuous developmcnt of Vietnam's stock market. We proactivelv collaborate
with the State Securities Commission, stock exchanges, and VSD, contributing expertise to
enhance rcgulations, mcchanisms, and policics, as wcll as to dcvclop ncw financial products for
the future.

R e rpnn si hi I i ti cs .for C omm n n it.1,

We fully recognize our responsibility in contributing to the building and development of
Vietnam's society and community. Activities ofrcharity, sharing, and supporting those in need
have become a core cultural value of our company over the years.

ft r's/rs affecting b us ines s op eratio n s

The main risks that a securities company may face are systemic risk and non-systemic risk.
Systemic risk is understood as a type of risk that affects all or most of the subjects in the economy,

including securities. The uncertainty of the economic environment such as GDP decline, interest
rate fluctuations, laws, and changing inflation rates are factors that create systemic risks, greatly
affecting the company's business performance. Non-systemic risks include risks arising from the

company's internal risks, including business risks, financial risks, and operational risks.
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I. OPERATION IN 2024

1. Production and business activities
The total operating revenue in 2024 reached 810.59 million \-rND. The main reason for the

revenue decline compared to 2023 was BOS being suspended from securities trading on the Iisted

market and the registered trading market, leading to a sharp decrease in revenue from brokerage

services and margin lending.

Net revenue 3,548.41 810.59

Profit before tax (18,019.04) (20.964.07\

Total costs in 2024 will increase slightly compared to 2023. The restructuring process faces

more difficulties when BOS has not been reopened for buy-side trading. Operating revenue was

greatly affected, while BOS still had to cover regular operating expenses, causing a loss of VND
20.9 billion for the whole year.

2. Organization and personnel

2.1. Board of Directors (BOD)

:

NI

P

u

TC

:

No. Full name Title
I Ms. Le Thi Truc

Quynh
Master of Economics in
Finance at Lates
University

Chairwoman of the Board of Directors
Ms. Le Thi Truc Quynh was elected to be Member of the
Board of Directors and to hold the position Chairwoman of
the Board of Directors of BOS Securities Joint Stock
Company on 10/0412023.

) Mr. Nguyen Thanh
Cam
Bachelor of Business
Administration

Independent Member of the Board of Directors
Mr. Nguyen Thanh Cam was elected to be a Member of the
Board of Directors of BOS Securities Joint Stock Company
on 10/04/2023.

3 Nguyen Thanh Le
Bachelor of Economics

Member of the Board of Directors, General Director of
the Company
Mr. Nguyen Thanh Le was appointed as General Director of
BOS Securities Joint Stock Company on 03107/2023 and
elected to be a Member of the Board of Directors on
09110/2023.

ll



2.2. Board of Management

No. Full name T tle
I Nguyen Thanh Le Member of the Board of Directors, General Director of

the Company

2.3. Supervisory Board

\
{
T)

:AIt

HO

:,
1
4

Full name
Vu Thi Huong
Bachelor of Accountin

Head of the Supervisory Board
Ms. Vu Thi Huons was dismissed on 09/0412024

Vu Minh Tuan
Bachelor of Laws
Bachelor of Banking and
Finalrce

Head of the Supervisory Board
Mr. Vu Minh Tuan was appointed on 1010412024

Nguyen Dang Vu
Bachelor of Economics

Memhers of the Supervisory Roard
Mr. Nguyen Dang Vu was elected as a Member of the
Supervisory Board of BOS Securities Joint Stock Company on
08/06t2019

Bui Thi Quynh I rang
Bachelor of Economics

Members of the Supervisory Board
Ms. Bui Thi Quynh Trang was elected as a Member of the
Supervisory Board of BOS Securities Joint Stock Company on
16/08t2022

2.4. Chief Accountant

No. Full name Title
1 Dao Thi Kim Ngan Chief Accountant

Ms. Dao Thi Kim Ngan was
Accountant on 16/1212024

dimissed the position of Chief

) Le Thi Thuong Le Thi Thuong
Ms. Le Thi Thuong was appointed
16n2/2024.

as Chief Accountant on

t2
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2.5. Number of employees: As oI3l/12/2024,the company has 25 employees.

Assouia{e
Bachelor
Higher

wO-3ndm

,, 0 3 ycors

3-5 years

Investment and project implementation

Large investments: none

Subsidiaries, affi liates : none

Financial situation
Maior financial indicators

m 22-30
years old

s 3l-40
years old

$ 40-50
years old

\
:Q

\

.N

1,I

xNam
Male

Female

3.

4.

Some other financial criteria

l3

Qualifications
Working age

Seniority

160.338.6 136.372.s

Profit before tax
(18,019.0



Criteria 2023 2024 '-

Liquiditv Ratio

Current Ratiu t3.43 17.41

Quick Ratio 13.43 t7.41

Capital Structure Ratio

Debt/Total Assets Ratio 0.05 0.04

Debt/Equity Ratio 0.05 0.04

5. Shareholder Structure

Stock

Charter capital of the Company: 969,225,090,000 \rND

Number of shares issued: 96.922.509 shares

Number of shares outstanding: 96,922,509 shares

Shareholder Structure

(

\

No. Items Number of
Shares

Rate
Number of
Shareholders

Shareholder Structure
Orsanization lndividual

I State
Shareholders

2 Founding
Shareholders

a
J Major

shareholders
(owning 5% or
more of shares)

5,839,900 6.03% I

4 Company Trade
Union

5 Treasury Stocks

6 Other
shareholders

91,082,609 9397% 12,543 l1 12,5132

Total 96.922.s09 100(, 12.544 lt 12,533
In which:

- Domestic 96.283.977 99.34% 12,462 t2.455
- Foreiqn 638,532 0.66% 82 A 78

List of related persons of the Company

I4



No. Name of orsanization/individ ual Job Title/Relationshio
I Le Thi Truc Quynh Chairwoman of the Board

of Directors
Related Persons

2 Nguyen Thanh Cam
Member of Board of
Directors

Related Persons

3 Nguyen Thanh Le Member of Board of
Directors /General Director

Related Persons
4 Vu Thi Huong Head of the Supervisory

Board
301 09 /2020 - 09 I 04/2024

Related Persons
J Vu Minh Tuan Head of the Supervisory

Board
From 09/04/2024

Related Persons
6 Nguycu Daug lfu hlcrilbur uf thc Supervisury

tsoard
Related Persons

7 Bui Thi Quynh Trang Member of the Supervisory
Board

Related Persons

8 Dao Thi Kim Ngan Chief Accountant
0 4 I I 0 / 2023 - 1 6 / 12 /2024

Related Persons

9 Le Thi Thuong Chief Accountant
From 76/1212024

Related Persons

4
*

c
cH(

s

Transaclions of shares by insiders and related parlies: None.
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Corporate Environmental and Social lmpact Report

Compliance with the law on environmental protection

Number of penalties for non-compliance with laws and environmental regulations: None
Total amount of money due to penalties for non-compliance with environmental laws and
regulations: None

Policies related to employees

Number of employees, average salary for employees: Number of 25 people, average
income of employees is approximately 19,000,000 VND/person.
Labor policy to ensure the health, safety and welfare of employees: Every year, the
company organizes periodic health checks for employees.
Employee training activities:

+ Average ttutrtber of training hours per yeirr, by employee and by employee <;lassifioation:
The company's leadership alr,vays focuscs on cmploycc training, considcring this as thc kcy
to the company's success. Every week, departments in the company organize internal training
olffscc for',lnrplu1,ees.

+ Skill development and continuous learning programs to support employees to ensure
employment and career development: Every month, the company has internal skills training
sessions to support employees to develop more at work.

6.3 Report of responsibilities for local communities

Community investment activities and other community development activities, including
financial support to serve the community in2024: After the Company completes the corporate
restructuring activities, the company will have specific activities for the coming years.

II. REPORT ON THE OPERATION OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Vietnamese stock market in2024 recorded anearly 12.11% increase, but most of the

growth occurred in the first quarter. For the rest of the year, the VN-Index mainly moved sideways,

struggling multiple times to surpass the 1,30O-point threshold. The average daily trading value

reached 20.849 billion VND per session, an l8.6Yo increase compared to the previous year's

average. However, capital flows showed a tendency to shift toward other investment channels such

as gold and real estate. External instability, particularly the rising value of the US dollar, caused a

sharp increase in domestic exchange rates, prompting the State Bank of Vietnam to issue treasury

bills and sell USD to intervene. While these measures helped stabilize exchange rates, they also

created psychological pressure on the market, especially for foreign investors. In 2024, Vietnam's

stock market saw a record-breaking net sell-off by foreign investors, with net outflows exceeding

90.3 billion \,rND. This trend was not unique to Vietnam, as investment capital was withdrawn
from Asian and emerging markets and redirected toward developed markets, particularly the US,

6.

6.1

6.2

t7



amid the sharp depreciation of local currencies. On the positive side, although all domestic and

foreign exchange-traded funds (ETFs) experienced net outflows, some actively managed open-end

funds continued to attract net inflows. This indicates that foreign investors still hold a positive
outlook on Vietnam's stock market, especially in anticipation of its potential upgrade to emerging
market status. Toward the end of the year, Donald Trump's re-election and his unconventional
policies put pressure on the interest rate reduction plans of central banks worldwide, negatively
impacting global trade activities. This development made domestic investors more cautious in their
decision-making.

In a challenging business environment, BOS's operating revenue in2024 reached 810.59

million \rND. BOS proactively requested to voluntarily terminate its clearing and settlement

services for derivative securities transactions and reduced advisorv and underwritins activities to
ensure compliance with the required capital adequacy ratio.

o Brokerage activilies.' BOS has not been restored to buying securities on the listed stock

market, the market registcrcd for trading, which has significantly affcctcd the revenue from

brokerage activities. 'l'herefore, revenue liom brokerage activitiesin2024 will only reach

148 million \rNID.

. Proprielary and inveslmenl activilies: The portfolio focuses primarily on stocks on the

OTC market. BOS has conducted a portfolio reassessment and plans to restructure the
portfolio to mitigate risks and increase available capital for the company.

o Securities services: BOS always considers service quality as an important factor to help

BOS improve customer satisfaction and loyalty, build a strong brand image. Officials and

professional staff are well-trained in professional skills and constantly improve professional

ethics.

o Inveslment consulting ond analysis: Analysis products closely follow market

developments to make timely recommendations, helping customers increase investment

efficiency.

o Risk management: Capital management with the priority of ensuring capital safety is
always the top priority. Investment portfolios and margin portfolios are continuously

reviewed and re-evaluated to promptly come up with handling plans in a volatile business

environment.

. Information technology: BOS's transaction system has provided customers with many

highly applicable utilities, ensuring fast, stable and accurate speed.

o Personnel: Collective activities continue to be maintained to create a friendly and open

working environment, increasing solidarity among members. The human resource

apparatus is restructured in the direction of streamlining, to reduce the company's operating

costs.
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In addition to the achievements achieved, BOS stitl has some limitations:

. Low operating capital has reduced BOS's usable capital adequacy ratio;

. It is necessary to balance capital reasonably between business activities to further improve

the efficiency of capital use.

Asset silualion

Total assets as of 3lll2l2024 are 736.37 billion VND, decrease by 14.95% compared to2023.

The decline in total assets was mainly due to a decrease in short-term assets, specifically other

receivables of investors decreased by 55.46 billion \fND. The reduction of receivables has helped

the Company improve its operating cash flow in2024.

Liabilities

Trrurl fiehr r'rilplrn I

Short-term liquidity
-1 ,1,8Y,,,

20.22

4.89'j/u

13.43

,{.5417u

t7.41

The debt-to-equity ratio of BOS remains low. BOS

borrowings, which means it does not incur interest expenses

capital in business operations.

Revenue Struclure bv Division

Revenue Structure in2023 ("h)
6%

Revenue from brokerage

Revenue from capital trading

Revenue from held-to-maturity investments

Revenue from proprietary trading

Other revenue

has no short-term or long-term

and maintains full control over its

Revenue Structure in2024 ("h)

: 18o/o i

0%

Revenue from brokerage

Revenue from capital trading

Revenue from held-to-maturili investments

Revenue from proprietary trading

Other revenue
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Revenue from brokerage and margin lending was significantly impacted as BOS had not yet
been allowed to resume buy-side transactions on the listed stock market and the registered trading
market. This was also the main reason forthe sharp decline in total revenue in2024 compared to
2023.Revenue from custodial services and financial advisory activities reached 522mrllion \rND,
accounting for 64oh of total revenue,

Cosl slruclure

Cost structure \n 2023 ('h)
I )y:o

Cost structure in 2024 (%)

" tOperation cost " Managernent cost Others " Operation cost a . Management cost Others

Total costs in 2024 will increase slightly by l.0l%o compared to 2023. The structure of
expenses has not changed much compared to2023. Because there is no debt loan, BOS does not
incur financial costs.

Business orientation in 2025

BOS expects to exit the control status soon and have buy-side transactions reinstated

in the first half of 2025. The resumption of buy-side trading will help BOS stabilize business

operations, improve revenue, and enhance profitability in the coming years. Key priorities
for 2025 include:

. Capital increase through lhe offering of twenly million (20,000,000) shares in the form of
privote and direcl offering to professional securities inveslors or/snd strategic investors
with a selling price of not less lhan 10,000 VND/share. After the successful offering, the
charter capital will increase to 1,169,225,090,000 WD.

o Ensuring financial safety ratios: BOS will continue to request approval from the State

Securities Commission (SSC) to withdraw from advisory and underwriting activities to
maintain compliance with the required financial safety ratios.

t
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o Rational capital slructure: Restructuring the investment portfolio, rationally allocating
capital for business operations to increase available capital and capital use efficiency;

o Ensuring continuous operalion: Main business operations such as brokerage, proprietary
trading, and investment consulting are the strategic activities of BOS in the next period.
Services to support the brokerage sector such as analytical products, investment consulting,
margin loans, etc. will continue to be focused on development and diversification to support
customers in investment activities.

o Technological infrastruclure: Ensure the stable operation of the information technology
system, transactions take place smoothly, at high speed, safely and accurately.

. Slrenglhen rish manogement: Continuously review compliance with business processes and

legal regulations. Internal control and risk management activities ensure timely supervision
at all professional stages.

Ewlanation of Oualified Audit Opinions

' Thc rcmaining deposit for tlie purchase of shares of Unicap Fultd lVlanagcurclit Joint Stock
C(-'llll)arl.v ftorrr l.rrcvicrus years transferred to the valrre at I l./lll2(lll and 0l/01/?0?.1 is VNI-)
63.5 btllton VND, which has been set aside for l00Yo of the value in the Financial Statements

for the fiscal year ended 3l/12/2022, failed to confirm the balance from Unicap, so UHY
gave an opinion that it could not assess the existence of the above balance.

. The margin loan for GAB securities, valued at114,411,857,455 \rND, was assessed by the
General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS) and the Board of Directors (BOD) as uncollectible.
As a result, a ftill 100%o provision has been made for this amount.

o The term deposit at Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank (MSB), valued at 467 .76 billion
\rND, was unilaterally seized by MSB without providing a full explanation to the company.
The General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS) and the Board of Directors (BOD) passed a

resolution assessing the recoverability of this amount and decided to make a full 100%
provision for it in the financial statements.

o According to First Instance JudgmentNo. 42612024/HS-ST dated August 5,2024, by the
Hanoi People's Court, BOS Securities Joint Stock Company is required to pay
42,471,521,663 \AID, which was deemed as unlawful gains from stock market manipulation,
to the state treasury. On August 14, 2024, the company filed an appeal regarding the
determination of this amount with the People's Court of Hanoi and the Supreme People's

Court in Hanoi, requesting an appellate review of the case. As of the issuance date of this
report, the case has not yet been heard in the appellate court, and the company's management

continues to monitor its developments.

:
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UI. RXPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. Assessment of the company's operation in the fiscalyear 2024

0verview

2024 is a difficult year for the world economy and Vietnam's economy. Although inflation
has cooled down, the economic recovery is still quite slow. The trend of easing monetary policy in
many countries has been promoted rapidly but the effect has not met expectations. The protracted

conflicts between Russia and Ukraine and the tense situation in the Middle East continue to disrupt
global supply chains, affecting prices and economic groMh. In Southeast Asia, especially Vietnam,

efforts to attract foreign investment thanks to a stable political environment and improved

infrastructure have yielded many remarkable achievements. Vietnam continues to stand out as a

top destination, with a GDP groMh rate of more than 7o/oin2024. As a result, Vietnam's stock

market still recorded an increase of more than l2%r. The stock market capitalization reached

7,080.26 trillion \rND, increasing 20o/o compared to the same period last year; equivalent to nearly

70Yo of GDP in 2023. The average transaction value reached 20,849 billion VND /session,

increasing 18,6% compared to the average of the previorrs year This is a positive resrrlt in fhe

c;ollcxI ol colrtpltcatcd world eoonomlc and geopollttcal developments. However, the lack ot'new
cash flows entering the market has made it impossible for the market to break through the threshold

of 1,300 points. Moreover, the story of exchange rates, foreign investors' net selling, the Fed's

interest rate cut roadmap, the US tax policy on Vietnamese exports... are also factors that make

investors more cautious. In a volatile business environment, the Company's Board of Directors has

made continuous efforts to overcome the remaining problems, specifically:

o Have remedied violations on the issuance of reports in accordance with the regulations of
the State Securities Commission and the Stock Exchange;

o Continue to restructure the business model; organize and stabilize the human resource
apparatus in the direction of streamlining, operating effectively, reducing management
costs and operating costs;

o Maintain stable and continuous operations of the company's main business activities;
o Strengthen risk management activities;
o Organize the implementation, direct the implementation and completion of tasks assigned

by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

.Assessmenl of the Company's operating results in 2024

Regarding the business plan: The suspension of securities purchase activities on the listed

securities market, the hading registration market and the derivatives market by the Vietnam Stock

Exchange has significantly affected the operating revenue in2024. BOS has remedied violations of
report disclosure as prescribed. However, because the SSC has not approved the withdrawal of the

consultancy and underu'rriting operation, the available capital adequacy ratio has not met the regulations.

The above situation has significantly affected business results in2024.
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Regarding risk management: Risk management activities continue to be strengthened at all

professional stages. Portfolio and margin lending are regularly re-evaluated to minimize losses incurred

for customers and the company.

Personnel work: BOS continues to streamline the personnel apparatus, restructure the

organizational apparatus, and anange work in accordance with professional qualifications.

Improving sentice quality: BOS always focuses on developing service quality to bring customers

the best experience. The stable, fast, and accurate online trading system comes with investment supporl

services for customers.

2. Operational orientation of the Board of Directors in 2025

The year 2025 marks the return of Donald Trump with new policies in his second presidential

term. This will be the first year these policies are implemented, and significant fluctuations are

likely during the transition. As a result, in the first half of the year, investor sentiment may remain

cautious due to concerns over tarifTrisks and the uncertainties of "Trump 2.0" policies, leading to
a sitlcways ur rrurrcutivc rluvcrllcnt in drc srtick markeL. In the second half of lhe yeaf, pollcies

aimed at boosting infrastructure investment and market upgrades are expected to support economic

recovery, providing momentum for positive market groMh.

2025 will be the year that BOS needs to carry out a strong restructuring to gradually bring
the Company out of special control and return to normal business activities. The targets of the

business plan in 2025 are set out as follows:

)\\e
i'\
I
nnt

a'i\
-/

Criteria Implementation in

2024 (billion VND)

Net revenue 10,880 0,810

2 Total costs 19,974 21,774

a
J Profit before tax -9,094 -20,964

With the orientation of becoming a digital securities company, BOS will prioritize expanding its

customer base based on digital technology; promote information technology infrastructure; to develop

a variety of types of financial services and investment consultancy. In addition, the Board of Directors

also proposes specific solutions as follows:

. Fully implement reports and disclose information as prescribed;
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o Increase charter capital by 200 billion VND through private placement and direct offering

to professional securities investors or/and strategic investors with a selling price of not less than

10,000 VND /share;

o Restructure investment portfolios; reasonable allocation of capital for business activities;

o Maintain continuous and stable operations of main business operations;

o Change head office;

o Ensure the stable, continuous, fast and accurate operation of information technology

o Strengthen risk management activities, comply

Stock Exchange.

IV. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

l. Board of Directors
l.l. Memhers and structure of the Board of Directors

the resulations of the SSC and the

No. Member of the
Board of Directors

Position Number of
shares

owned at
the end of
the period

Stock
ownership ratio

at the end of
the period

1 Le Thi Truc Quynh Chairwoman of the Board of
Directors appointed on
10/04/2023

0 0%

2 Nguyen Thanh Cam Member of the Board of
Directors appointed on
10/04/2023

0 0%

J Nguyen Thanh Le Member of the Board
Directors appointed
091r0/2023

of
on

0 0%
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1.2. Board of Directors'Meetings

1.3. Contents and results of BOD meetings

=
c(
c(

lul

No. Member of the Board of

Directors

Number of meetings of

Board of Directors

attended

Attendance

rate

i.easons for not

attending the

meeting

I Ms. Le Thi Truc Quynh
24/24 100%

ẑ Mr. Nguyen Thanh Cam
24/24 t00%

J Mr. Nguyen Thanh Le 24124 100%

No. Number of
Rcsolutions

Date Content Rate of
approval

0r/2024/NQ-
HDQT-BOS

03t01/2024 Finalizins the list qf shareholders to hold
the Annual General Meetins of
Shareholders 2024

100%

2 0212024/NQ-

HDQT -BOS
t0l0|2024 Changing the last registration date to

make a list of shareholders exercising the
right to attend the Annual General

Meetins of Sharehol ders 2023

r00%

J 03/2024ntQ-
HDQT -BOS

tU01t2024 Changing the last registration date to
make a list of shareholders exercising the
right to attend the Annual General
Meetins of Sharehol ders 2024

100%

4 0412024|NQ-
HDQT -BOS

t6/01t2024 Regarding the payment of the remaining
value of the house sale contract No. BT34-
O 4 / 2023 /F LC -LUXCI TY/HDMB

100%

5 0512024tNQ-
HDQT -BOS

2U02/2024 Approving the official contents to be

submitted to the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders 2023

100%

6 06/2024/NQ-
HDQT -BOS

2U02/2024 Approving the official contents to be

submitted to the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders 2024

100%
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No. Number of
Resolutions

Date Content Rate of
approval

7 07.U2024/NQ-
HDQT -BOS

2210212024 Establishing the Sharehol der

Qualification Inspection Committee at the

Annual General Meetins ot' Shareholders

2023

r00%

8 07.212024tNQ-

HDQT -BOS

22t02t2024 Establishing the Vote Counting
Committee at the Annual General

Meeting of Sharehol ders 2023

100%

9 08.1/2024/I.{Q-
HDQT -BOS

t00%

t0 08.2t2024/NQ-
HDQT -BOS

23/02t2024 Establishing the Vote Counting
Committee at the Annual General
N,{cctiug uf Shurohulduru 202,1

r00%

ll 09/2024/NQ-
HDQT -BOS

27t02/2024 the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders 2023 (2nd Meetins)

100%

12 r0/2024/NQ-
HDQT -BOS

27/02t2024 the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders 2024 (2nd Meeting)

100%

l3 1r/2024tNQ-
HDQT -BOS

1910312024 the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders 2023 (3rd meeting)

100%

t4 12t2024/NQ-
HDQT -BOS

19t03t2024 the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders 2024 (3rd meeting)

t00%

l5 r3t2024/NQ-
HDQT -BOS

19t03t2024 Approving the contents to be submitted to
the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders 2024 (3rd meeting)

100%

l6 r4/2024/NQ-
HDQT -BOS

0910412024 Nominating candidates for additional
election of members of the Board of
Directors for the term2024 -2029

r00%

l7 rs/2024tNQ-
HDQT -BOS

1010412024 Electing the Chairperson of the Board of
Directors of BOS Securities Joint Stock
Company

100%

:
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No. Number of
Resolutions

Date Content Rate of
approval

l8 1612024tNQ-

HDQT -BOS
10/04t2024 Approving the remuneration of Members

of the Board of Directors and Members of
the Supervisory Board

100%

19 17t2024tNQ-

HDQT -BOS
t6/04t2024 Approving the plan to liquidate odd lots

of shares in the proprietary portfolio
100%

20 r8t2024/NQ-
HDQT -BOS

2t/0st2024 Selecting audit firm to implement the
Financial Statements 2024

100%

21 19/2024/NQ- | 0s/7t2024
HDQr -Bos 

I

Hiring Legal Services 100%

22 20/2024/NQ-
HDQT -BOS

30/8t2024 Implementing cost-saving mcasurcs 100%

^aL) 2U2024ntQ-
HDQT -BOS

2719/2024 Approving transactions with related
parties

100%

Z1 22t2024/NQ-
HDQT -BOS

23/10t2024 Approving the Company's control remedy
plan

100%

25 23t2024/NQ-
HDQT -BOS

0l/rU2024 Establishing the Company Restructuring
Board

100%

26 24.1/2024tNQ-
HDQT -BOS

l6/12/2024 Dismissing the position of Chief
Accountant with Ms. Dao Thi Kim Nsan
from 1611212024

r00%

27 24.212024tNQ-

HDQT -BOS
r6/12t2024 Appointing Ms. Le Thi Thuong to hold

the position of Chief Accountant of BOS
Securities Joint Stock Company from
1611212024

100%

(
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1.4. Supervisory activities of the Board of Directors

In 2024, the Board of Directors will regularly supervise the activities of the Board of
Management and make timely directions and decisions for the Company's activities, ensuring

compliance with the Company's processes, regulations and Charter

- Completion of the Semi-Annual Financial Safety Ratio Report 2022 and the Audited
Financial Safety Ratio Report 2023.
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- Completion of the Semi-Annual Financial Statements2}22, the Audited Financial
Statements 2023, and the Annual Report 2023.

Selection of an audit firm in accordance with legal regulations and the Company's Charter.

- Supervision of the company's proprietary trading activities as perthe Board of Directors'
resolulions.

- Conlinuous monitoring by the Board of Directors on the implementation of General
Mecling of Shareholders' and Board of Directors' resolutions by the Board of Management.

1.5. Activities of subcommittecs of the Board of Directors (if any): None

1.6. List of Members of Board of Dircctors participating in corporatc governance programs
during the year: None

2. Supervisory Board
2.1. Member of thc Supcrvisory lioard

\
Q\'<

\

v
9

No. :Members of the

Supervisory Board

Position Numbcr of
shares owned af

the end of the

period

Stock ownership
ratio af the end

of the period

I Vu Thi Huong Head of the

Supervisory Board

Dismissed on

09t04/2024

0 OYo

2 Vu Minh Tuan Head of the

Supervisory Board

Appointed from

10t04/2024

0 0%

J Nguyen Dang Vu Members of the

Supervisory Board

0 0%

4 Bui Thi Quynh Trang Members of the

Supervisory Board

0 0%
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2.2. Meetings uf lhe Supervisory Board

No. Members of the

Supervisory Board

Number of
Meetings

Attended

Attendance

rate

Voting

Rate

Reasons for not

attending the

meeting

I Ms. Vu Thi Huong U2 s0% t00% The General

Meeting of
Shareholders

dismissed Ms.
Vu Thi Huong
from 0910412024

2 Mr. Vu Minh Tuan U2 50% r00% The General

Meeting of
Shareholders
elected Mr. Vu

A4rnh I uiln lrom
09t04t2024

3 Mr. Nguyen Dang Vu 2t2 r00% r00%

4 Ms. Bui Thi Quynh
Trang

2/2 100% r00%

2.3. Activities of the Supervisory Board

Ln2024, the Supervisory Board did not receive any letters and complaints related to the Board

of Directors and the Board of Management as well as did not see any abnormalities in the

governance and executive activities of the Board of Directors and the Board of Management of the

Company.

The Supervisory Board has been provided by the Board of Directors with Resolutions, minutes of
Board of Directors meetings, Resolutions of the Board of Directors have issued the correct functions

and powers to comply with the Charter on organization and operation of the Company, the Law on

Enterprises and other provisions of law.

3. Transactions, remuneration and benefits of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Management

3.1. Remuneration of the Board of Directors, income of the Board of Management
Remuneation of Board of Directors 1.426.666.668

Income of Board of Management 1.194.000.000

Totaf : 2.620.666.668
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3.2. Assessment of the implementation of regulations on corporate governance:

Members of the Board of Directors, Members of the Supervisory Board, the Board of
Management and all employees of the Company shall comply with the law on corporate
govemance.

ln the coming time, after the successful restructuring of the company's operations, the Company's

Leadership will focus on specific solutions and plans to enhance the efficiency of corporate govemance

3.3. Stock trading of fnsiders: None

3.4. Contracts or transactions with insiders:

No.

Name of
organizationl
individual

Relationship

with the

company

Number,

date of
tssltA nce,

place of
issuance of

NSH*

Head

Office/

Contact

address

Time of
transaction

with the

Company

Number of
Rcsolutions/Dccisions

of the General

Meeting of
ShareholderslBoard

of Directors

Content,

quantity,

total val ue

of
tra nsactions

Remark

I

tsAMtsOO

AIRWAYS
JOINT
STOCK

COMPANY

Related

Parties of
Insiders

0107867370

issued on

3l/05/2017 at

the Hanoi

Authority for

Planning and

Investment

lJr, fr'['nrr

Son, Ward

12, GoYap
District,

Ho Chi

Minh City

30/09/2024

Resolution No.

2r/2024/NQ-FDQT-

BOS of the Board of
Directors approved on

27/09/2024

Transactions

with related

parties

(
.ti

\

3.5. Other transactions: None

3.6. Other benefits

Other beneflts: Ilealth insurance regime, annual health check-up regime, automobile use

regime, r,vork-trip allor.r'ance regime.
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BOS SERCURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25th floot,265 Cau Giay building. Dich Vong rvard, Cau Giay province. Hanoi

REPORT OF TIIE BOARD OFMANAGEIVIENT

The Board of Management BOS Securities Joint-stock company (hereinafter refened to as the
"Company") abor-rt the Board of Management and Board of Dirsctors (hereinafter referred to as the
"Management") propose this report along with the Company's audjted Financial Statements for the year
ended 3l December2024,which tbe company's Board has approved of Directors.

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The members of the Board of Management, Board of Directors and Supervisorsy Board of the
Company who held ofiice during the year 2024 and to the date of this report are as follows:

Board of lVlanagement

Ms. Le Thi Truc Quynh Chairw'oman
Mr. Nguyen Thanh Le Member

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Cam Member

Board of Directors

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Le General Directer

Board ofSupervisers

Mr. Vu Minh Tuan Head of department Appoint on 10/04/2024
Ms. vu ThiHuong Flead of departmenr Dismissed on09/04/2024
Mr. Nguyen Dang Vu Member
Ms. Bui Thi Quynh Trang Member

Chief accountant

Ms. Dao Thi Kim Ngan chief accountant Dismissed on 16/12/2024
Ms. Le Thi Thuong Chief accountart Appoint on 16/12/2024

Legal Representative

The legal representative of the Company as of the date of this report is Ms. Le Thi Truc euynh -
Chairwoman.

EVENI'S SUtsSEQUENT TO THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Company's managemeht asserts that: aparl from the informalion pre.sented in Note 37 of the
Finbncial Statement Notes, there are no other significant events occurring after the end of the. financial
year that have a material impact requiring adjuitment or disclosure in th-e financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

Other important events (if any) will be announced and updated as soon as this information has an
important impact on tlte Financial Statements or is necessary to disclose according to regulations.
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BOS SERCURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25o floor, 265 Cau Giay building, Dich Vong ward, Cau Giay province, Hanoi

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TIIANAGEMENT (CON,T)

AUDITORS

The accompanying financial statements for the year ended 3l December 2024have been audited by
UHY Auditing and Consulting Company Limited.

B G;.RD .JF T{ANAG ETVENT S TA TE IVIENT CF IiES POI.JS IB I I, IT Y

The Board of Management of the Company is responsibie tbr preparing the linancial statements tbr the
year ended 3l December 2024, which give a true and fair view of tbe financial position of the
Company and of its results and cash flows of the Company during this period and are approved by the
Board of Directors. In preparing those financial statements, the Board of Management is required to:

. Select suitable accounting policies and then appty them consistently;

. Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
r State rvhether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to anJ.. material

cicl'1uq1urcs diiclO-sed and explairied iri tlre financial stirtL-ntcuts;
I PrePr'rrb the financi'al stutellents orr ihr: going r:oncnrn hasis unless it is inappropriatc to

presume that the Company will continue in business; and
o Establishing and implementing an internal control system effectively to limit the risk of

material misstalement due to fraud or error in preparing and presenting the Financial
,qiLtrlctrrctlls.

The Board of Management confirms that the Company has complied with the above requirements in
preparing the financial statem ents.

The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which
disclose, u'ith reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and to ensure that
the financial statements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards. Vietnamese Corporare
accounting system. and related legal regu.lations in Vietnam. It is also responsible for safeguarding the
assets ofthe Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection offraud
and other irregularities.

OTHER COMMITMENTS

it

The Board of lvlanagement commits that the Company has cornplied w'irh the disciosure obligarions as
stipulated in Circular No. 9612020ffT-B'tC dated 16 November 2020. issued by the Ministrv of
Finance regarding information disclosure in thc sccurities markct^

Chairrvoman

Hanoi, // February2025



AUDITiNG AT.{D CONSULTING CO LTD

No: 50/202S/UHY-BCKT

INDEPENDENT AUDIIORS' RXPORT
Regarding lhefinoncial slatementE of BOS Securities Joint Stock Company

For lhe yeu ended 3l December 2024

To: Shareholders, Board of Management and Directors
BOS Securities Joint Stock Company

We have audited the frnancial statements For the year ended 3 I Decembe r 2024 of BOS Securities
Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as the "Company") which prepared on 1l February
2025, as set out on page 07 to 3 8 herein, including: the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2024, the
Income Statement, the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 3l December 2024 and Notes to
the Financial Statements.

Responsibilities of the Board of Management

The Board of Management of thg Company is responsible for preparing anrJ presenting the
ftnannial statements in a true and fair view in conformity for the year ending 31 DecemberlOZq
with Vietnamese Accounting Standaldp. Yietnamese Corporate Accorrniing System and relafed
legal regulations on the preparation and presentation of the financial statements and for such
lflrerrial cbnrrol as r:he Board of Direcrors <ierermlries ls neeessaiy rd eflabie rhe preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that are free from materjal misstatements, whether due to
fraud or error.

Responsibilities of the Auditors

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditine. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements, plan and perform the audit 6 obtain reasonable
assurance whether the frnancial slatements are free from material misstatement.

Al audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgmenl
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entiry's preparation and fair presentation of the financial staJements in order to
dcsign audit procedures that are appropriate in tlte circumstances, but not for flre purposv r-rf
expressing an opinion on the effecJiveness of the entity's intemal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accountins
estimates made by the Board of Diiectors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of th!
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our qualified audit opinion.

Head Offlce: 5th Floor, 82 Tower,
Roman Plaza, To Huu Street, Dai Mo Ward,
Nam Tu Liem Dlstrict, Hanoi, Vietnam-
Phone: 84 24 5678 3999
www uny.vn



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONT'D)

Basis for Qualified opinion

Among the balance of other receivables is the remaining deposit for the purchase of shares of
Unicap Fund Management Joint Stock Company transferred from previous years rvith a value of
VNiD 63.5 billion and thc pcnding assct is thc tcun depusit at Ivlaritiilc Currrrrrcrcial JLrilt Sl"ock
Bank (MSB), but MSB automatically seized it from 2022 and has not fully explained the reasons
to the Company, totaling \rND 467,155,415,291. The General Meeting of Shareholders ("GMS")
and ihe Board of Directors ("BOD") have assessed this amount as unrecoverable and to make a
100% provision for it from )022. However, as of the date of this report, we have not been able to
confirm the balance of this receivable, and therefore cannot assess the existence of these
receivables as of 0l January 2024, and 3l December 2024.

The loan balance includes a margin loan with the stock code GAB with a value ol' VND
114,411,857,455.'I'he General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors have i.ssued a
Resolution on assessing that these amounts are not yet recoverable and making a provision of
100% of the value in the Fjnancial Statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022.
However, up to the time of issuing this report, we have not been able to carry out the procedures
fur reconciliation and confirmation of debts with related subjects. Therefore, we cannot assess the
existence and rcasonableness of this loan balance as of 3 ll12/2024 and 0110112024.

Regarding lie criminal case of fiaud, appropriation of assets, market manipulation, intentional
disclosure of false information or concealment of information in securities uoiilriti"r, and abuse of
FOsttlon and polvor rn thc pcrtormance ot'ntticinl drrtieq nt FIC Grrrrrp Irrinr t1r14[; Cfifipns1r xeg
rrlntcrl clttticr (fhr, ''f 'asr") arrardinn, f'r lhr f rrtt,irrst:n;r irr,.llr,i-r+rqf N,-, ti(,12.0ji,,I:i{.iT ,la1,:,.f
05 August 2024, oi the Hanoi People's Court, BOS Securiti"i loint Stock Company must repay the
illegal profits from the act of market manipulation amounting to VND 42,471:52i,663 to the state
budget. On 14 August 2024, the Compan-v filed an appeal regarding the content related to the
determination of the profit amount of BOS Securities Jojnt Stock Company to the Hanoi people's
Court and the High People's Court in Hanoi, requesting the case to be tried under appeilate
procedures. As of the issuance of this report, the case has not yet been tried on appeal, so the
Company's Board of Management is still monitoring the developments of the case. Therefore, we
cannot yet assess the impact of this case on the accompanying financial statements of the
Compan-v.

Qualified opinion

In our opinion. except for the effects of the matter described in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion"
paragraph, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material
respects, the financial position of BOS Securities Joint Stock Company as of 3l December 2024,
as well as the results of its operations, cash flows, and changes in equiry for the financial year
ended on that date, in accordance with the Accounting Standards, the Accounting Regime uppti"a
to sectrrities companics, atrd rclsvant legal rogulations r:n the preparatiolt und pLcsurtriliort of
financial statements in Vietnam.

\\',6 '

\;
I:l-
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INDEPEND-f,NT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONT'D)

Emphasis of matters

Note 36 to the f;nancial statements:

As of 3J December 2021, the accumulated losses of the Company amounted to MliD
859,993,479,081, As of fhe daJe of issuing this report, the Co-mpany has gx-perienced several
eveats related to the downsizing of its busjness oper,ations. The Companyis conting.ent liabilities
under the Preliminary Judgrnent No.426/2024/HS:ST dated 05August'20i4, of the Feople's Court
of Hanoi have not yet been appealed. However, the Company's Management Board is
concentrating to resolve these issues to ensure the Company can contiRue its norrnal operations
and that its curreht financial position is fully capabte of mLe:ing its debt obligations. There'fore, the
accomp'anying fmancial 5tate,rnents are still prepared on the going concem basis. Our audit opinion
does not qualifr regarding this matter.

fham Gra l)at
Deputy General Director
Auditor's Practicing Certifi cate
No: 0798-2023-112-1
For and on behalf of

Nguyen VanIIai
Auditor
Aud itor's Praoticing Cer1ifi cate
No. 1395-2023-112-1

UITY AUDITING AND CONSUI,TING COI4PAI.'{Y LN{ITED
Eanoi. II Februarv2025



BOS SERCURITIES .IOINT STOCK COMPANY
25d floor, 265 Cau Giay office building,
Dich Voos ward. Cau Giav district. I-lanoi

FINANCIAL STATEMEI{T
For the year ended3l/12/2024

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
As at 3l December 2024

Code NoteASSf,TS

CURREN'T ASSETS

FINANCIALASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Cwh

Financial assets at Fair value thourgh ptofit or loss

Loan receivalbles

Provision for devaluation offinancial assets and col]ateral

Short{erm receivables

Receivables and accrued di'vidends, inlerest onfnanciol ussets

Prepayment to supplier

Receivables from services provided by the securities compan)

Olher receivables

Proyision for devaluation of re ceivables

Oth e r,lbo.rf:te rm a,r,csfc

Advances to employee5

Short{erm prepayment

P le dge, mortgage. short-term d eposi g s hortterm col late ral

Tares and other receivables liom the State

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed assets

Tangible flred assets

- Hislorical aost

- Accumulated deprecialion

Intangible fi-red assets

- Historical cost

- Accumul aie d amo rt izal io n

Other long-term assets

l,ong-ternt prepayment

Deposits to the Settlement Support I'und

TOTAL ASSETS

3111212024

\4{D

0U0t/2024

VND

100

110

lll
1t1.1

1t2

l14

116

tll
117.2

U8

|9
t22

129

ri0
1Jl

133

114

136

200

220

221

222

223a

221

228

229a

250

252

254

270

84,172.738.968

79,781,949,569

5 69,180,275,214

69,I80,275,214

7 9,197,336,236

8 I 14,4|,851,455

9 (l 14,4t 1,8s1 ,4ss)

l0

l0 71,919,019

I 0 29,414,601,830

t 0 531,326,222,464

il 660,042,405,\94)

4,1n4,?fl9199

68q000,000

342,115,125

405,5 1 4,05i

2.956,560,219

52,199,741,658

32,844,494,986

12,441,327,094

28,909,900,175

(l6,468,073,081)

20;402,261,892

46.069,083. I 06

(25,666,815214)

19,355,646,672

34,796,772

19,320;849.900

105.212,369,507

101,169,548.968

32,786,219,450

32,786,2 19,450

9,754,434,130

ll14,970,096,519

(il4.411.85',7,455)

36,885.529

36,885,528

t.134,422.872

29.337,205,468

587,004.517,651

(560;012,405,194)

4,0{2,E20,539

J46,000,000

222.260,320

3 16.000,000

2,956,560,219

55,126,190,967

35,997,865,214

13,038,433,518

28,909,900,17 5

(t5 ,87 I .466 ,651)
22.959,431,696

46,069.083,106

(23,109.651,4t0)

19,128,325,753

50,344,795

19,077,980,959

4
Cr'q/

l2

13

l8

t6

l4

l2

l5

l36J:72,480,626 160,338,560,474

The accomponying notes are an integrol part of these.financial slatements



tsOS Sf,RCURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25th floor, 265 CauGiay office building,
Dich Vong ward, Cau Giay district, Hanoi

tr.INANCIAL STATEMENT
For the year ended 31/12/2024

FINANCIAL STATEMENT (C ONT'D)
As at 3l December 2024

RESOURCIS

LI{BILITIES

Current lia bilities

Payable to securiites transaction actjvities

Shortlerm trade pavables

Short{erm advances from customers

Taxes and other payables to the State Budget

Payables to employees

Employee benefi t contributions

Short-tenn accural expenses

Other short{erm payables

Bonus and nelfare fund

owNERS'BQUfTY

Owners'equiry

0mcn'equity

Ownen'equil.v

- Ordinary shares with voting rigfrtt

Share premium

Otler owners'equitv

Investnent and development fund

Business restructuring fu nd

Other equity funds

Retained eamings

- Realized profts

- Unrealized profils

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S IQUITY

Note 3Unn024 0u01D024

YND VND

4,833380,144 7,835394,t04

4,833J80,141 7,835J94,101

t7 1,098,166.452 1.104.100,657

Code

300

310

318

320

321

322

323

)t+
32s

329

331

400

4lu

4lt
4|. r

41t.ta

4t 1.2

4 tI.4

414

4r5
Attat(,

417

417,1

417.2

+40

+

,0rr

;ruc

B

:>-
l8

t.245.472,526

I I 0,000,000

57,185,494

276,7 43,092

937,121 ,137

695,548,097

477,500,000

96,252,982

276,496,092

937.12t.337

7 43,841,4t6 1,409,718,607

84,653,895 49,529.035

280.195.942 2.788.827.297l9

20

131,539,100,,{82 152,503,1 66.370

131,539,100,482 152,5U3,166370

969,530,383,997 969,51Q,393,997

969,22i,il9l,t[l/t 969,725,090,iJil()

969,225,090,000 969,225,090,000

(219.330,000) (2t9;330.000)

524.623.997 524,6?3,997

10,724,210,951 10.724,210,95t

11,263,566.694 11,263,566,694

II il1 q)1 14,117,921

(859,993,479,081) (839.029,413.193)

(572,26i6,253,133) (551,535,916,123)

(287 .727 ,225.948) (281 ,493,497 ,070)

136J12,480,626 160p38,560,474

n
I| _..-

l-'n-

Ban Ha Trang
Preparer

Le Thi Thuong
Chief accountant

Le Thi Truc Quynh
Chairwoman
Hanoi. Il Februarv2025

?.t;--"--i\
t,_---q ! !

{ftiu.*
(* i' r;ii ;"r+

n \ctiurr

The accompanying notes ore an integrol part of thesefnancial stotements



BOS SERCURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25b floor,265 CauGiay office building,
Dich Vong ward, Cau Giay district, Hanoi

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For the year ended 31112/2024

INDICATORS OUTSIDE THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

ITIMS

Assets of the Securities Company and Managed Assets

Outstanding Shares

I isted/Registered Financial Assets at VSD oftho Soourities

Company

Deposited FinancialAssets at VSD and Not Yer Traded of the

Securities Company

Undeposited Financial Assets at VSD of the Securities Company

Assets and Payables Related to Managed Assets Committed
to Customers

Listed/Registered Fiaancial Assets at VSD of Investors

Frecll' Transferable tinancial Assets

Restriutcd Trunsfer Financial Assets

Pledged Financiai Assets

Blocked or Temnnrarily lJeld Fina.ncial Assets

Financial Assets Awaiting Settlement

Deposited FinancialAssets at VSD and Not Yet Traded of
Inyestors

Deposiied Financial Assets at VSD and Not Yet Traded, Freely

Transferable

Customer Deposits

Investor Deposits for Secur.ities Transactions Managed by tlre

Securities Company

Clearing and Seftlement Deposits for Securities Trarsacrions

Clearing and Settlement Deposits for Domestic Investor

Securities Transactions

Payables 1o Inyestors for Securities Transaction Deposits

Dlanaged by the Securities Company
Payables lo Domestic Inyestors for Securities Trarnaction

Deposits Mandged by the Securities Compaty

Payables for Dividends, Principal, and Interest on Bonds

Code Note 3y12t2024

YND

0t/0il2021

IND

I

006

008

009

012

96,922,509

2l 20,905,550,000

22 81.1 1 0,920,000

23 49.0i0,050,000

24 12',11,361,110,000

3t4.101,t30.000

4,04 I,000.000

8,000,000,000

944,069,980,000

I , I 50,000,000

25 27,750,690,000

27,750.690,000

26 20,546,974,970

17,886.424,258

2.660,490,712

2,660,490.112

21 20;545,933;086

20,545.933)086

14,290,640

Le Thi Truc Quynh
Chair-woman

96.922.509

20,911,370,000

8l.l 10,820,000

49,050,050.000

1,259,218,790,000

302,003,200,000

4,041,000,000

8,0(]0,000,000

944.068,980,r)|.}n

l, I 05,61 0.000

29,056J60,000

28,056,360,000

78,633,745,505

75,199,909,381

3.433,836,124

3,433,936,124

23,166,737,594

23,166,731,594

14,290,640

T

1A

<Hi
:$

021

021.1

021.2

Qzt,3

fi?.1.4

02t.5

022

022.1

026

027

029

029.1

031

03 r.1

Ban Ha Trang
Preparer

I e Thi Thuong
Chief accountant

COf'lG TY fut nd'prAnr \*

Hanoi, ll Februorv 2025

The accomponying notes ore an integral part of these fnqncial srqlements



BOS SERCURITIES JOD.{T STOCK COMPANY
25rh floor, 265 Cau Giay office building,
Dich Vong ward, Cau Giay distric,t, Flanoi

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For the year ended 3l/12/2A24

ITEIIIS

Cain from fair value tluough profit or loss financial assets (f-V1'PL)

Gain from sale of fl'TPLfnancial ussets

Gain from revaluation of f ['7'PL f nanciol assets

Dh;idends ond interest arisingfron FLTPLfnancial asse ts

Interest fiom loans and receivables

Stock brokerage revenue

Revenue fiom securities depository activities

Revenue from financial consulting activities

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses

Loss fiom fair value througl prolit or loss financial assets (FVTPL)

[,tti,';7or sale o1 FLTPL frnancnl ns.rtls

Loss from revaluation ofFI'TPL financial assets

,icuurlrlcc brokcragc cxpcnscs

Securities depository expenses

Total operating erpenses

Financial revenue

Revenue. accured dividend ard interest on demand deposits

To(al financial revenue

Adminstration expenses

Operating profit

INCO]VIE STATNMENT
For the year ended 3I Deeember 2024

Code Note

0l

0l I

0r.2

0l .3

03

06

09

t0

20

0

0

2l
?l I

21.2

i.t
JU

40

A1

50

62

70

1264,950,631 I,Q91,574,641

15,:137,621;.911, 15,533'899,506

09;691)77;9A4|. (lE'168'7681256)

Year 2021

VND

Y ear 2023

VND

"\
\

itr

I
.',

35

28

28

135.054,021

36,736,553

96,412,939

1.904,529

4,596,264

148.044,710

141,308,673

38 t.590,908

810,594;636

4U7 .07 4.546

16,9-\2,129

330, l4 l.E I 7

-r, l4l,trJl,lUJ
486,591,6t7

6,035298,266

1,?64.950,637

69,07 5,440

65.350,690

3.724,750

2,355.430,425

909.1i5,140

214,'7 69,493

3,5,18,410,498

225,353,b7 3

?25,353-673

1,,_1j{ /,yiJ,\,u89

5n,534,527

7274,853,889

t.091,57 4.641

:i5

)y
29

30

31

The trromnnn'tinl n1l,J.r ur? on lnteornl ryrrt pf lftp.re fin,tne iol rl(ttpntpnl-t
P;;;vJ.lr!.:r./



BOS, SERCUR.ITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25th floor,265 Cau Giay office building,
Dich Vong rvard" Cau Giav district. Hanoi

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For the year ended 31112/2024

]T[MS

Otlrer income

Othcr cxpenses

Oher profit

Profit before tax

Rea.lized profits

Unrealized profits

Corporate income lar expenses

Current corporate income tari expenses

Profit/(Loss) after tax

Nrt inconc pcr shalc

Earnings per share (!l{D/share)

INCOME STATEIUXNT (CONT'D)
For ihe year ended 3 I December 2024

Code Note

Le Thi Thuong

Chief accountant Chairwoman

Year 2021

VND

Year 2023

VND

\
,l

7t

72

80

90

9l
92

100

t 00.1

200

i00
i0l

I
'*

\

1t2,0t6
t,266,800,000

(1,266,687,984)

(20,964,065,888)

(20,730,337,0t0)

(233,728.878)

(20,964,065,888)

(2r6)
(2 16)

r 49,935.533

204,1 88

149,731,345

(18,019,036,91 1)

(t] .859,033 ,928)
( I 60,002,983)

1,J75,000

1.375.000

(l 8,020,41 I ,gl 1)

(186)

(186)

Ban Ha Trang
Preparer

ruc Quynh

,*"-;'c',/-.-'j<'k

Hanoi, ,l I February 2025

The acconpanying notes are an integral part of these fnancial statement.s 1l



BOS SERCURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25th flooi,265 Cau Giay office building,
Dich Vong rvard. Cau Giay district, I lanoi

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For the year ended 3l/12/2024

Items

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash paid for purchasing flnancial assetj

Cash received from selling financial assets

Cash paid to the Settlement Support Fund

Dividends received

Interest receiyed

Palments to service providers for the securities company

Pa;,rnents to employees

Tarcs paid related to the operations ofthe securiries company

Other cash received from operating aqtiviries

Othcr cash paid lor operating activities

Net cnshJlows from operating tclivjlie^s

C:iiil llt*s fr urir Ilireiiiiitg Artitilitii:
Cash paid for purchasing. constructing fixed assets, inyestment

'Cash received from the disposal offixed assets, investment
properties. and other assets

Nel cash flows from invesling sctivilies

Cash Flows frqm Financing Activities:

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net IncreaselDecrease in Cash during fhe Year:

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end ofthe year

CASII FLOW STATEMENT
(Under the direct method)

For the year ended 3I December 2024

Code Note

01

02

03

04

0i

07

08

09

l1

12.

2n

Year 2024

YND

Year 2023

VND

56,543,720.487

1,904,5?9

1,063,563.487

(6.508,932,903)

(10,172,937 ,944)

(1.297,479,0;3)

3,117,648,508

(4,7 t4,5?8.209)

38,062,958,922

( 1,668,903. I 58)

(1,668,903,1 58)

36,394,055,764

32,786,219,450

69,180,275,214

(50.220,6s6,623)

37 ,941 ,251.335

(277.082,607)

3,724,750

2,793,396,198

(7,460,817,068)

(8,869,399.929)

(1,127 ,546,719)

24,093,916,723

(25,964,302,960)

(29,081,51 6,900)

I 60,000.000

I 60,000,000

Q8,921,516,900)

61,707,736,350

32,786,219,150

4
.e
7

\21

22

JO

40

50

60

70

The acgompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stqtements



BOS SERCURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPAI{Y
25th floor, 265 Cau Giay office building,
Dich Vong ward. Cau Giay district, Hanoi

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For the year ended 31/12/2024

cASrI FLOW STATEMENT (CONT'D)
[Under the direct method)

For the year ended 3I December 2024

CASH FLOW FROM BROKERAGE AND CLIENT TRUST ACTIVITIES

Items Code Note Yezr 2024

VND

Year 2023

VND
Cash receipts fiom sale ofbrokerage securities to customers

Cash pa,v"ments for acquisition of brokerage securities for
customers

Cash receipts for settlement ofsecurities transactions of
customers

Pa,u-ment of .securities custody fees for customers

Cash receipts fiom securities rssuers

Cash payments for securities rssuers

Nel increasddecrease in cash during lhe year

Cash and cash equipvalent of inyestors at the beginning
of1'6s.

Cash at banks at the beglnnlng ofthe year:

- Investors' deposits managed by the Company for securities

trading activities

In which:

- Clearing and Seitlernent Deposits for Securities Transactions

Cash and cash equipvalent ofinvestors at the end ofyear

Cash at ban-lis at the end ofthe year:

- Investors' deposits managed by the Company for securities

trading activities

In whiEh:

- Aggre_eate deposits for securities transaotions for customers

0l

02

0l

09

12

IJ

20

JO

"=
tJ:

:ln
"'l

YU

8t

-
JI

)/.

66.912,382,700

(128,023,270,7s8)

t,453,021,402

(64,839.9 I 4)

1,956,642,035

(3?0.v66,00.0)

(5 8,086,830,53 5)

78,633,745,505

78.6Ji,7,+),5U5

'/5,199,909.381

3,433,836,124

20,546,9r4,970

20.546.9t4,970

t7,886.424.258

2,660,490,712

I 65.588,928.091

(238,7 48.561.402)

102,896,t22,s84

(t23,s03,435)

29,61 2,985,839

49,020,759,667

49.U'20, t59,66 /

47 .861,086,397

1.r59,613.270

78,633,745,505

78.633,145,505

75,199,909,381

3.433.836,1?4

JJ

40

41

42

M

Ban IIa Trang
Preparer

Le Thi Thuong
Chief accountant

;\--j'".>'*\,n'i
\q

TY\irl cd pnAnr 1*

Le Thi Tr:uc Quynh
Chainvoman
Hanoi, ll February2025

The accompanying notes qre an integral part of these financial statements l3
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BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25b floor,265 Cau Giay office building,

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended
3l December 2024

I.

Dich Vong ward, Cau Giay district. Hanoi
NOTES TO TIIE X'INANCIAL STATEMENTS
(fhese noles are an integral part of and should be read in conjunctionwith thefnancial slatements)

l.l.

GENERAL INFORMATTON

STRUCTURE OF OWNERSHIP

BOS Securities Joint Stock Companr.' ("the Company") was established and operates under
Decision No. 85/UBCK-GP dated March 3,2008, and subsequent amended licenses issued by
the State Securities Commission. The most recent Business Registration Certificate No.
0102669368 was issued by the Hanoi Department of Flanning and Investment on 21 Dec,ember
2023.The Company's charter capital is VND 969,225,090,000.

The rrumber of employees as at 31 December 2024 is 34 members (at 0l January 2024 was 3l).

The Company's head office is located al: 25th floor,265 Cau giay office building, Dich Vong
ward, Cau Giay district, Hanoi

BUSINESS LINES

Business activities

Securities brokerage; Secutities trading; Securities undenvriting: Financial advisory; Securities
Ilvcsunenr advlsoty; uepository servtces.

fnvesment resf rictions

The Company's investment portfolio and investment restrictions are consistent with the
investment objectives and policies clearly stated in the Company's Charter of Operations and.
current securities laws:
1. Securities companies are not allowed to purchase or contribute capital to purchase real estate

except for use as headquarters, branches, and transaction offices to directly serve the
professional activities of the securities company.

?' Securities companies purchase and invest in real estate according to the provisions of Clause
I of this Article and fixed assets according to the principle that the remaining value of fixed
assets anil real estate must not exc€ed 

-50% oi the price. total assets of the securities
company.

3. The total investment value in corporate bonds of a securities company musr nor exceed,T0o/o
of equity. Securities companies licensed to conduct securities self-trading operations are
allowed to re-buy and sell listed bonds according to relevant regulations on bond re-trading
transactions.

4. Securities eompanies are not allorved to directly or entrust other organizations or individuals
to:

\
c
\

'\
)A

>

1.2

a) lnvest in stocks or capital contributions of companies that
charter eapital of the securities company, except in the case
the request of the customer;
b) Together with related persons, invest 5oZ or

own more than 509to of the
of buying odd-lot shares at

more of the charter capital of another
securltres company;
c) Investing more than 20%" of the total outstanding shares and fund certificates of a
Iisted organization;
d) Investing more than l|ok of the total number of outstanding shares and fund
certificates of an unlisted organization. This regulation does not apply to member fund
certificates, exchange-traded funds and open funds:
d) Invest or contribute capital in excess of 10Y" of the total capital contribution of a
limited liability company or business project,
c) Invest or contribute more than 15% of equiry to an organization or business project:

t< ,/LJ tA" /IW



BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25h floor.265 Cau Giay office building,
Dich Vong ry4rd, Cau Giav district. Flanoi

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended
31 December 2024

NOTES TO TIIE FI\*ANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(fhese notes qre an integral part of and ,shotld be read in conjunclion with the financial stcttements)

l. GENERAL INFORMATTON (CONT'D)

1.2 BUSINESS LTNES (CONT'D)

g) lnvest more than 70%o of equit-v in stocks, capital contributions and business projects,
of which no more than20Yo of equity is invested in unlisted stocks. capital contributions
and business projects .

Normal production and business cycle: I'he Company's normal production and business cycle is
a4r.ried out within a period of no more than D. monlhs

2. BASIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND FISCAL YEAR

Basis of financial statcment

The accompanying financial statements are presented in Vietnamese Dong (VND) based on
historical cost principles, except for financial assets recognized through profit/loss (FVTPL)
which are initially recognized at market value or fair value (in the absence of market value) in
accordance with accounling standards. The Accounting Reginre for Securities Companies,
acctlunting guidclines applicable to Securilics Conrpanies, and relevant legal regulations related
ro the preparadon and presentatlon of flnanbral statements.

I he accompanyrrg ttnanctal statements are not rntended to present the iinancial position, results
of operations, cash flows, and changes in equity- in accordance with accounting principles and
practices generally accepted in countries other than Vietnam.

FINANCIAL YEAR

The financial year of the Company begins on I January and ends on 3 I December of the calendar
year.

The finaneial statements have been preparedfor the y'ear ended 3l December 2024-

ACCOUNTING CURRENCY

The unit used in accounting is Vietnamese Dong "VND" and presented in the hnancial statements in
Vietnamese Dong.

ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEMS

Adoption of accounting standards

The accompanyi:ng financial statements are prese4ted in Vietnamese Dong (VND), prepared on
the historical cost basis and in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards applicable
to securities companies, as promulgated under Circular No. 21012014/TT-BTC dated 30
December 2014, and Circular Ns. 334/2016/T'[-BTC dated 27 December 2016, which amend,
supplement, and replace Appendices 02 and 04 of Circular No. 210/20l4ffT-BTC dated 30
December 2014, issued by the Ministry of Finance providing accorinting guidelines for securities
companies.

The selection of figures and information to be disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements
is based on the materiality principle as stipulated in Vietnamese Accounting Standard No,21,
"Presentation of Financial Statements ".

Accountin g IVIethod Applied

The Company applies the accounfing method of the General Journal using computgr-based
software.

\.,o \
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BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
^-ti ^25'n lloor. 265 L'au Giav office buildins.
Dich Vong ward, Cau Giav district, Ha]roi

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended
31 December 20?4

NOTES TO THE FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(lhese notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the fnancial statements)

4, STIMMARY OF SIGNIFICAT\T ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies, which have been adopted by the Company in the preparation
of these financial statements. are as follows:

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformiry with Vietnamese Accounting Standards
requires the Board of Directors to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of liabilities, assets and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting
dale and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses drrring the financial year 2024. Aotual
results could differ fiom those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments
w'ith original maturities of three months or less, which are highly liquid. readilv convertible to
cash, and subject tcl an insignificant risk ofchanges in value.

Invesfor deposifs for securifies transactions

Investor deposits tbr securities transactions represent firnds entrusted by securities investors at
designated banks to execute securities transactions. These amounts are disclosed under off-
balance-sheet items in the financial statements.

Inyestor margin deposits at VSD

lnvestor margin deposits at the Vietnam Securities Depository (VSD) represent funds deposited
by investors to facilitate derivatives transactions. These amounts are also disclosed under off-
balance-sheet items in the financial statements.

Depos ifs fo r clearing secur:ities tran sactions

Deposits for clearing securities transactions represent mdrgin funds required for clearing and
settlement of transactions at the Stock Exchanse and the Vietnam Securities Deoositorv'.

Contributions to the settlement assistance fund

These represent amounts contributed by the Companv to thc Vjctnam Sccuritics Dcpository as

part of the Settlement Assistance Fund. The initial fixed contribution is VIVD 120 million, with
an annual contribution determjned as 0.01% of the total transaction value of listed and registered
securities brokerage services cleared through depository members in the preceding year, capped
at MVD 2.5 hillion per year.

Fair value through profit/loss (FVTPL)

Finansial assets classified as FVTPL must meet one of the following conditions:

(i) Held for trading. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they meet any of the
following criteria:
r Purchased or created primarily for the purpose of resale oi repurchase in the short term;
. Evidence exists that the instrument is being traded for short-term profit-taking; or
. Financial derivatives (except for financial derivatives designated as a financial guarantee

contract or an effective hedging instrument).

/
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BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25th l'loor, 265 Cau Giay ofhce building,
Dich Vong ward, Cau Giay district. Hanoi

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended
3l Decenber 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(lhese nofes are an inlegral parl of and should be read in conjunction with the /inancial .llatements)

4. SUIIMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNPD)

(ii) At initial recognition, financial assets may be more appropriately' presented if classified as

FVTPL for one of the followtng reasons:

. Classifling financial assets as FVTPL eliminates or.sr'gnificantly reduces inconsistency in
the recognition or measurement of frnancial assets based on different bases.

. The financial asset is part of a group of financial assets managed, and the performance is
evaluated based on fair value, in line with the Company's risk management policy or
lnvestment strategy.

For financial assets recognized through profit or loss (FVTPL) under the securities company's
financial asset porffolio: The basis for recording increases or decreases in quantiry and value of
FVTPL securities purchased in the securities company's financial asset portfolio is calculated at
the date T+0.

At the end of the accounting period, the value of FVTPL financial assets under the securities
company's iinancial asset portfolio must be reassessed based on market value or fair value (in the
abselce ot'market value).

liur listcd/trildcd lJVl'PL lurarrdial assc[s, thc urarkct value is detennincd as the clusirrg pricc on
thc most rcccnt trading dat,at thc end of the finoncial reporting period.

For unlisted,/untraded FVTPL financial assets, if the company cannot obtain the markel value, it
will record these assets at ther cost.

The cost of these financial assets recognized through profit/loss is determined using the weighted
average method.

The transaction costs for purchasing FVTPL financial assets are recorded as trading expenses in
the income statement as they arrse.

Ileld-to-Maturity Financial Assets (HTIlf)
HTM financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Company has the intention and abiliq,- to hold to maturitlz, except
for;
. Financial assets that upon initial recognition, are designated as at fair value through profit or

loss;
. Financial assets that are designated as available for sale;
. Financial assets that meet the definition of loans and receivables.

HTM financial assets are initially recognized at co,st and suhseqrrentlv measrrred nt amorfized
cost, less any impairment allowances for EITM financial assets.

Loans
Loans are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or identifiable oavments and not listed on the
market, except:

. Assets that the Company intends to sell immediately or will sell in the near future are
classified as held for trading. as well as those that, at the time of initial recoghition, were
classified by the Company as measured at fair value through profit or loss (F{TPL);

r Assets that the Company classified as available-for-sale at the time of initial recognition; or

r Assets for wh:ich the holder may not recover most of the initial investment value, not due to
credit deterioration, and ar classified as available-for-sale.

The loans provided include margin trading contracts and advalce payment contracts for
secr-rrities sales. The loans are initialllr recognized at cost and continue to be recognized theteafter
at cost less any provision for impairment of the loans. ,

I
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BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25d floor,265 Cau Giay office building-
Dich Vonq w'ard. Cau Giav district. Hanoi

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended
3I Decemher 202-1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(fhese notes are an integral part oJ'and shottld be read in conjunction with the financial statement,s)

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES (CONT'D)

Provision for impairment of financial assets and collateral assets

At the end of the accounting period, the Company must evaluate provisions for impairment of
financial assets and collateral assets securing the securities company's loans according to
securities lar,v regulations.

When there is any objective evidence of impairment of held-to-maturifi inveslments, or
available-for-sale financial assets; the Company must determine the impairment loss of these
financial assets and record the provision for imparrment.

The provision for irnpairment of collateral assets is determined by the difference between the net
value of the asset, calculated at market value or fair value, and the value of the loan. calculated at
market value or: fair value as per the agreement or commr'tment in the mortgage loan contract,
recorded .in the accounting books at the time of the provision.

Receivables and provision for inrpairment of receivables

All receivables and dividends, interest receivables from the Company's financial assets portfolio
atrsrng dunng thc y€ar irr'c uroir,rtu-tcrl triir'Jer tlig "lteCeivalrlcs and acclurtl div,idr:rrd-s, illl-ctcs( uri
financial aSsets" item in the financial position report.

Receivables are recorded at the book value of customer receivables and other receivables. alons
with the provision for impairment of receivables.

Short-term and long-term margin and betting receiyables
Short-term and long-term margin and betting receivables reflect the cash received as margin or
betting by the Company from various counterparties in its operations in accordance with the
current legal regulations. These margin or betting amounts are not considered company assets,
and the Company must manage them separately from its own cash assets.

Short-term and Long-term Receivables

Receivables from the Sale of Financial Assets: Reflects the total value of receivables from the
sale of f,nancial assets in the Companyis finanqial asset portfolio (excluding transactions through
Stock Exchanges), including the maturifv value of financial assets or the liquidation of these
financial assets.

Receivables and Accrued Receivables for Dividends and Interest on Financial Assets:
Reflects the total receivables and accrued receivables for dividends and interest on financial
asscts in tlc Compnny's finoncinl n,tsct pofifolio.

Receivables from Seryices Provided hy the Company: Reflects the Company's receivables
from the Stock Exchange, the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Colporation (VSDC),
investors who are the Company's client5, securities isiuers or underwrit"ri, und receivables from
secudties trading activities.

Provision for Impainnent of Receivables: Proyisions for doubtful receivables are made for
each doubtful receivable based on the overdue ase of the receivables or the estimated potential
loss, as follows:

Provisions for doubtfll receivables are made for each doubtful receivable based on the estimared
potential loss.

Increases, decreases in the balance of provisions for doLrbtiul receivab.les that must be made at
the end of the financial year are recognized in administrative expenses..
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BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25'n floor. 265 Cau Giay office buildins.
Dich Vorig ward. Cau Giay district, Hiioi

FINANCIAL STATEIITENTS
For the y'ear ended
31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These noles are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements)

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIT'ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Tangible fixed Asset And Depreciated

The cost of tangible fixed assets comprises the purchase price ( less trade discounts or rebates)
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Subsequent expenditures incurred after the initial recognition of fixed assets are
capitalized when these expenditures are certain to increase future economic benefits.
Expenditures that do not meet this criterion are recognized as operating expenses in the period
incurred.

(jt

)F

K

,Jl
Tangible fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method
lives (in years) as follows:

Buildings, structures
Machine equipment
Transportation, transm ission
Officc cquipment
Other fixed asset
So fi lviirc

over their estimated useful

Year
l0 - 50
02-15
06 - r0
03 - l0
03-05
0?-n5

lrr lrru gi Dlc lircd nrrctr nucl nm mor.iilairon

Intangible fixed assets are land use rights and software programs that are managed and used.
Depreciation rate is determined in a straight line based on the estimated useful life of the assel
not less than 4 years and not higher than 50 years.

Payment for the Seftlement Support Fund

This refers to the amount the Company contributes to the Vietnam Securities Depository rySD)
with an initial fixed contribution of \DID 120 million. The annual contribution is determined at
0.01% of the value of listed securities brokerage transactions and securities registered for trading
at stock exchanges, seftled through the custodian member of the previous year, but not exceeding
V|ID 2.5 billion per year.

Payables for Securities Trading Activities

This includes the amounts payable to institutions providing buying and selling services for the
Company's or clients' financial assets through the Stock Exchange and the Company as a
member; or to the agents participating in the issuance of securities for the issuer in relation to the
Company's securities underwriting activities.
Orrmers'Equily

Owner's equity is recordcd bascd on the actual capital contribr-rtions of the shareholders.
Undistributed post-tax profits, after setting aside funds as required by law and the Company s

Chartcr, will hc distributcd according to thc rcsolution of ths Gpneral Meeting of Shareholders.
Reyenue
Revenue from service transactions is recognized when the outcome of the transaction can bc
measured reliably. In cases where the service transaction involves multiple periods, revenue is
ricognized in the period based on the resqlt ofthe work completed as of the balance sheet date of
that oeriod.

20
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BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25th floor. 265 Cau Cia,v office building,
Djgh Vong rvard, Cau Giay district. Hanoi

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended
31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(fhese notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the fnancial .rtatements)

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAA'TACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Service reyenue is recognized w.hen all tbe following conditions are met:

. Reyenue can be measured reliably;

. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow' to the
entity;

r The stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date can be measured
reliably;

. The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be
measured reliably.

o Revenuejiom securilies brokerage sclivilies:

This j.s the frln.saciion fcc tllnt tlte Curtipa-rt_y carrrs ljum securitics hrokerage activilics for invcstot.s.
recognized when the brokerage sen,ice is completed.

c Interest fromllinancial ossels ilfair volue through profit or loss (FWpL):
Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes the differences betweerl
rclling pdcps 6'.t*1 cnst pt:icon h,qrcd on thc quant'tv trf ITVTTL firLutcial arsutr uuld; iuuutrru fiur'll
dfvldehili, proflt shadng ti'orn stocks, borrd rrrteiest, and tnterest lrom tr.red deposrts tn the IVIPL
financial assets portfolio; and the increase in revaluation of FVTPL financial assets.

c fnkreslfrom held-to-malurie @fW iniestments:
Interesl arising from the HTM financial assets portfolio that the Company receives (bond interest,
interest from term deposits).

. Inlerestfrom loans and receivables:
Interest from loans arising from loans in accordance with Iegal regulations.

. Intereslfrom available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets:
Interest arising from the AFS financial assets portfolio that the Company receives (dividend interest,
bond interest, monetary inslruments).

. Revenuefromfinoncial adviso4, gBTyigss.

Revenue arising from providing financial advisory services to customers in accordance with legal
regulations. Revgnue from financial advisory activities is recognized in the Income Statement when
the service is Completed and the customer accepts paymenl.

t Revenuefrom securilies cuslody services:
Revenue from securities custody services for the Company's investors is recognized in the Income
Statement rs the custody fee collected from investors with securities deposited in custody, determined
at the cnd of each month, and the shareholder register management fee,

Financial income
Interest from long-term investments is estimated and recognized as the right to receive interest frorn
the invested companies is established.

Bank deposit interest is recognized based on perr'odic ban.tr< statements, and loan interest is recognized
on an accrual basis according to the actual time and interest rate of each period,
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BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25th floor, 265 Cau Giay office building,
Dich Vong ward, Cau Giay district, Hanoi

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
l-or the year ended
31 December 2024

NOTES TO THF, FINANCIAT STATFn{rJ'NTS (CONT'D)
(fhese notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction vtith the f nancial statements)

4. SUMMARY OFSIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Operating cost and Administratiye Cost

Manageme nt expenses of a securities company

Include salary expenses, office supplies, taxes and fees, outsourced service expenses, and other cash
expenses serving the company's management activities.

Taxes

Corporate income tax represents the total value of current tax payable and det-ened tax.

The current tax payable is calculated based on the taxable income for the year. Taxable income differs
from the net profrt presented in the Income Statement because taxable income excludes income or
expenses thai arc taxahle rtt rlt-'rjtrt:lihle in rlififercnt prriuls (including carryfor-ward losse.s, if any) and
exc.ludes nor ^taxable or non-deductib lc itcm s,

The determinatjon of, the Comoan-v's income tax is based on the cunent tax regulations. However, these
regulations charlge periodically, and the final determination of corporate income tax depends on the results
of the examination by tlre competent tax authority.

Other taxes are applied according to the current ca.r laws in Vielnam.

Related Parties

P:rrties are considered related if one part.v can control or significantly influence the other parry in making
financial and operating policy decisions. Parties are also considered related if they are subject to common
control or significant coirnmon influence.
In considering therelationships of related parties, the substance of therelationship is givenmore emphasis
thanthe legal form.

The parties identified as related parties of the Company during the year include; Members of the Board of
Directors and the Executive Board of the Company.

5. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at3ll12l2024 As at 0l/01/202{

!]YDVND

\
f

,,

Cash on hand

C-aSh" At bank

Clearing and seftlelnent deposits for securities transaclions

Total 69,r8027s214 32.786.219,4s0

t5,1t6.941

68,880, I t9, t25

284,359,142

6,655,101

32,i7E,0 I I ,034

1,5t2.715



BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25d floor, 265 Cau Giay ofilce bui.lding.

Year 2024

Securities compxn!

- Sfocks

Investors

- Stocks

Total

Year'2023

Securities company

- Stocks

Inr,crtorr

- Stocks

Total

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Finaircial assets at fair yalue through profit/ loss (FVTpL)

Items 31n2/2024

Trading volume execufed Total value of tmding

during the year volume executed during the

(Stc)
year

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended
3l December 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(Ihese notes are an integral part of ancl should be read in coniunction with tlrc financial slatements)

6. THE VALUE OF STOCK TRADING VOLUIVIE EXECUTED DURING THE YEAR

11,646

| 1,646

9.724.071

9,724,01 |

323,369,0t6

323.369.016

65.480,815,t 80

65,480,845, | 80

9,735,717 65,80j,214,196

Trading volume execufed

during the year

(Stc)

Total vrlue of trading
volume executed during the

year

81)U5,015

87,305,075

447,11),r48,120

142.772,948,120

8730s,075 442,772,948,120

1

atntD024
Book value

\t\rD

Fair value

\AID

Book value

\,ND

Fair yalue

\TNID
+ Listed slocks

KTF

GAB

TtAI

FLC

Othets

+ Noh-Listed stocks

FCA

FHH

ITASCO

Others

Total

87,209,212,298

7,772,914,914

74,939,000,000

2,972,659,445

1,621,99V,7 43

3,g5l,196

209,715,349,886

1 36,600,000,000

72,999,4A0,000

I10,000,000

6,349;gg6

9,184,972,019

707,089,900

7,382,546,719

390,073,500

704,053,000

1,210,000

I 2,3 64,2I 7

12,364,277

87,s32,581,314

7,172,814,914

74,838,000,000

2,972,658,445

1,621,88V,743

327,220,212

209,7 1 5,319,886

I36,600,000,000

72,999,000,000

I10,000,000

6,349,996

9,742,069;9I 3

702088,800

7,699,939,793

390,073,500

704,053,000

24 1,0 t 4,9i0

r 2,364,2 I 7

12,364,217

9,754,434,130

3

*/

296,924,562,184 9,197336236 297,247,937,200
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BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25h floor,265 Cau Giay office building,

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended
3.l December 2024Dich Vong ward. Cau Giay districr, Hanoi

NOTIS TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part oJ'and should be read in conjtrnction.u;ilh thefnancial stalemenls)

8. LOANS
Items

Account lending receivables

+ Margin Iending for investor trading

actiyities (Margin) (*)

Tolal

As tt Jlll2l2024 As at 0110112024

Book value

YND

Fair yalue

VND

Book value

YND

F.air value

VN'D

9.

114,411,957,455 114,970,096,518 558.239,063

___!!!.,!f&ll__________ - 111.970,0e6,s18 ss8:19,063

(*) Including margin loan with stock code GAB with a value of 114,411,857,455 VND, which has been
set aside for 100%o ofthe value according to the Resolution ofthe 2nd extraordinary general meeting of
shareholders i,n 2023 No. 02/2023/NQ-DHDCD -BOS 09 Octoher 2023 on Financial Report for the
year ended 3ll12/2022.

PROVISIONS FORDEVALUATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND COLLTERAL

ltems Provis ion as at 311 1212024

Increlse/decrease

Prolision rs at during the vear

31fi2n023

Bnofr vrtlue

I td,t11,fl57,455

114,411.857,455

lpnviriotr

114,111,8.57,4.55

| 14.11 1,857.455

|4111tE51,455

I I4,41 t.857,4i5

Fair vrluc

,.
C(

UI

'4'i
10.

Inaq rtcei!':llhhr

Margrn

ACCOUN'I'S RECEIVABLE

Reccivables and accrued dividends, interest on inyestmenls

Accrued interest on margin lending operations

Adyances to supplier

Adyances to other supplier

Rcceiyablcs from seryices provided by securilies companies

Receivables from brokerage activities

Recejvables {iom corporate financial advisory aciiviiies

ReCeivables from securities custody activities

Receivables from other services

Other receivables

Deposit oontracts at lvlaritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank (l)
Receivables fiom deposits (2)

Other receivables from hvestors

Other receivables

Total

As at31ll2l2024

VND

As at 0110112021

YND

717,979,019

711,9t9,019

29114,607,830

1,28 1.638

268,255.000

266,604,672

28,878,460,520

531326,222,464

467,155,415.29r

63,500,000,000

670,80:t,173

36,E85,52E

36,885,528

1,7J4,422,812

1,734,422,872

29,337 305,469

3, I 09,0i 5

265,500,000

r90,t3i,9li

29,979,46Q,520

587,004,547,65J

467,155,415291

63,500,000,000

55"461.299,52'.:l

887.832.833.

_____ s6lAs2l43;r3 6t8,1tl;0615t9

(l ) It is a term deposit at Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank (MSB), but MSB itself seized it and
has not fully explained the reason to the Company. This amount has been provisioned at 700yo of the
value in the 2022 Financi'al Report according to the Resolution of the 2nd extraordinary general
meeting of shareholderc in2023 No. 02/2023/NQ-DHDCD-BOS dated 09 October 2023.

w



BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25tn floor,265 Ca:u Giay office building,
Dich Vong rvard Cau Giay district, Hanoi

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For ttre year ended
3l Decernber 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These noles are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction w,ith thefinancial statements)

t0. ACcor/NTS RECEIVABLE (CONT'D)

(2) Deposit under 03 deposit contracts to buy shares of Synergy Fund Management Joint Stock Company
- UNICAP with units related to individua.ls prosecuted under the stock market manipulation case
securities of uhich these individuals are legal representatives (Do Thanh Hanoi Construction and
lquiptlettt Juitit Stuuk Curlparry, IlvlR Ilrvesunerrt ltnd Developmenl Cullrparl,v Lirlitcd. Tam An
lmport Export and Trading Investment Company Limited ). This amount has been provisioned at
100%o of the value in the 2022 Financial Report according to the Resolution of the 2nd extraordinarv
general meeting of shareholde rs in 2023 No. 02/2023AIQ-DHDCD-BOS dated 09 October 2023 .

rI, PROVISIONS FOR DEVALUATION OF ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES.
lur2024

Provision for the Revenal rrnount

Ierr during the yeai

I4YD VND

3unn\u \uunv4

YND

.Doubtful receivables must haver provision for The ralue of

doubfful debts doubtful receivables

I'TIDVND

Proyision for senices providd by seuriiirs

cornprniei

Ms.Dang Thi Hoan

lvfs. Darrg lli llurg ILr

il'fs. llinh Thi Kin Thuy

Mr. Mai DucNam

Ms. Nguyen ThiCam Tr

Ms. Nguyen ThiNga

Ms. Nguyen Tra My

Mr. Nguyen Tuan Anh

l\1r. Vo lrong tljeu

Othen

Provhion for advancm to supplieru

Thai Nguyen newspapei

00S sofriar-ejoini stock company

Viet Lly Investnent and Tcurisn &npany Limited

Intemational Management Syslem Integration

Company l,imiiurJ

PioVision for other roreivables

- Tam An Trading Inve$rnent and Inport-

Exprt Company Limited

- IMR Investment and ftvelopment Company

-Do Tharlh Hin0iMaterials, Equipment and

Construction Joint Stock Company

- Vietnam Marilime Commgrcial Joint Stock

Bank

Total

29296,702,403

1,98i,?67,855

l-E02, r30,3tJ

l,.|28,6_5 7,0?8

2,392.082,113

3,215.0t5,924

1,7M,423,468

2,U4,898.378

3,161,31t,42s

2,79r,04t,936

8,595,3,13,521

90187,i00

3,000,000

20,000,000

25.200,000

42,087,sN

510.655,115J91

26,000,000,000

17,5m,000,000

20,0w,000,000

461,155,415,291

29)96,701,403

1,985,?67,855

1,802, ti0,3tJ

l.l?8:6-i?,078

2.392.082,123

3,245,015,921

1.74/,,123.468

2.141,898,i78

3.t67,i|t,425

2,79t Mt,936

8,591i43''{21

90,2r'sm

3,000,000

20,000,000

25,200,m0

42,08i.s00

510,655,415J91

?6,m0,000,000

17.500,000,000

20,0m,0m,000

29J96,102,403

1,985,761,855

I,E02, Ij0.l9J

I, l?E,6i7,079

L392,082,423

3,245.015,924

r.1u,423.468

2.444,898,3?g

3.t61,34t,11s

2,191,04),9"36

8,59i,34i.i21

90,2E7j00

j,000,000

20,m0.000

2i,200 000

42,087,500

530,655,41 5,t9 I

26,000.000,000

17,500,000,m0

20,000,000,m0

.JG

PI
;l
o

M7,t55,415,291 467,ts5,415,29)

560,042,405,194 560,0,12,405,191

26 ,/
\W'

560,0{2,J05,1 g.l



BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25b floor,265 Cal Giay office building,
Dich Vong ward, Cau Giay district, Hanoi

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended
3l December 2024

NOTES TO THE FNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(Ihe se notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction v.'ith the Jinancial statements)

12. PREPAYMENTS

As at3l/12D024

VND

As at 0l/0t12024

VND
Short-lerm prepayments

Tools and equipments

Others

Long-term prepayments

0then

Total

I3. PLEGE, MORTGAGE, DEPOSTT

0ftice lease deposit

0t.hers

Total

14. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

377$11,897 272,605,115

As at Jll12D024 As rt 0110112024

\ry0 VND

342t715,125

342,715,tzs

u,796,772

31,796,772

222,260)20

222.260.320

50344,795

50,344,795

379,514,055

2r,,000,000

3 16,000.000 :
I

T

iI
i(

j

405,514,055 316,000.000

Land

use righl

r"D

Programs, softlvaye

VND

Other intangible

assets

VND

Total

\T{D

HTSTORICAL COST

As at0l/0112024

As at3lll2l2024

As at 0110112024

Armmotization

As at3l/1212024

CARRYINC A]IIOUNT

21,054,563,159 23,579,',737,400 1,434,782,548 46,069,083,106

21,054,563,159 23,579,737.4A0 1,434,782549 46,069,083,106

A CCUMULATED ARIVNIOTIZATION

125,931,190

526,364,076

21,548,937,672 1,434,792,549 23,709,657,410

2,030,799,728 - 2,557 ,163,904

652,295,266 23,579,73V)400 7,434,792,549 25,666,975,214

20,928,631,968 2,034,799,729As zt 0110112024

As zt31ll2l2024

22,959,431,696

As at 3l/12/2024:

- The total original cost of intangible fixed assets that have been fully depreciated but are still in use is
14,476.981.199 \ND_

- The total original cost of intangible fixed assets that have been fully depreciated, unuse is
6,894,449,216 W\lD.



BOS. SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25b floor,265 CaaGiay office building,
Dic,h Vong ward, Cau Glay distrist, Flanoi

FINANCIAL STATET{ENTS
For the year endbd
3l December 2024

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(|hese notes are an integrol part of and should be read in conjunction with lhe financiql ;tatements)

15. DERIVATIVESECURITXSCLEARINGFUND

lnitial deposit

Additional deposit

Arinual interest :allocation

Total

As at3lll2f2024

vl{D

1 20,000,000

13,231,t50,736

5,969,699.164

As at 0110112021

VND

I 20.000,000

13,186,692,5?0

5,771,289,439

191320;84t,900 !9,0t7;980,958

..\

\

,N

4
I
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BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCK CO1VIPANY
25ti Floor, 265 Cau Giay Building,
Dich Vong ward. Cau Giay province, Hanoi

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended
31, December 2074

NOTES TO THE FIr\ANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(fhese notes are an integral parl of and should be read in conjunclion with the fnancial statements)

17. PAYABLE FOR SECURITIES TRADING ACTIVITIES

3r/12/2024

YND

Payables to the securities exchange

Payables to the Vietnam Securities Depository rySD)
Payables to securities purchase

Payables to collaborator commission

Other payables

Total

07t0U2024

VND

0t/01/2024
VND

905,211

4) 5)) sql

1,035, I 63,500

5,284,450

14,290,640

1,098,166,452 1,104,400,657

2,598,941

39,373,537

I ,035,1 63.500

7,265,645

19,999,034

18. TAX AND RECEIVABLES FROM/PAYABLES TO THE STATE BUDGET

Amount
paya ble

VND

Amount
payable

VND

31tr2t2024

VND

VA I tax

Corporation income tax

Personal income tax

Other tax

Total

In which:

Amount payables

Amount receivables

(2,956,560,219)

96,252,982

41,i07.540

I1,500.000

1,205,378,109

3,ooo,ooo

4 r.307,540

1 1,500,000

7,244,445,597

3,000,000

(2.956,560,219)

57,t85,494

(2,860,307,237\ I,208,378,109 1,247,445,597 (2,899,374,725) 4v'c(
c(

)Hu

\

96,252,982

2,956,560,219

3u12t2024

!lt{D

57 ,185,494

2,956,560,219

0u01t2024

VNI)

19, SHORT- TER]VT ACCRUED EXPENSE

Tcmporary' inorcasc in BT34-04 villa
Others

Total

t

280,195,942

1,668.903,158

1,719,924,139

280,795,942 2,788,827,297

c

\
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BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25th floor, 265 Cau Giay office building,
Dich Vons rvard. Cau Giav dislrict. Hanoi

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

31 December 2074

20.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(lhe,se notes are an integral parl of and should be read in conjttnction with the fnancial statements)

owNERS' EQ UITY (CONT'D)

Details of Owners' Equity

As at 3l/72/2024 As at 07/07/2024

Shareholders Contributed capital Percentage

\rND %

Contributed capital Percentage

VND %

969122,5,09O,000 100.00"/o

Transactions of Owners' Equity

- Owner's equity
+ At the beginning of year:

4 In-crease during year

+ l)r,l;triir,N rJru ir11; 1'trrr
+ Atthe endof year

The company's stock issuance situation is as follows :

Number of shares registered for issuance

Nrlmber of shares sold to the public
* Common shares

* Preferred shares

Number of shares outstanding
* Common shares

* Preferred shares

Par value of shares UND per share)

TINANCIAL ASSETS LISTED/REGISTERED
CO}IPANIES

969,225,090,000 969,225,090,000

969,225,090,000 969,225,090.000

Ms La My Phuong

Others shareholders

Total

Unrestricted fi nancial assets

Total

58,399.000,000 6.03%

910,826,090.000 93.97%

58,399,000,000

910.826,090.000

969,225,090,O00

Year2024
\TIYD

6.03%

93j7%
100.00%

Year 2023

\/ND

3t/12/2024
Shares

07/0U2024

Shares

96,922,509

96,922,509
96,922,509

96,922J,09
96,922,509_

I 0,000

96,922,509

96,922,509
96,922,509

96,922,509
96,922,509

10,000

As at0l/0112024

VND

>

, f,f

;oA

.?I
j
l,

jt

($
21. FOR TRADING AT VSD OF SECURITIES

As at3L/12/2024

VND
20,805,560,000 20.921,370,000

20,8051560,00.0 20,921370,900



BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25b floor,265 Cau Giay office building,
Dich Vone rvard. Cau Giav district. Hanoi

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

3.1 December 2024
NOTES TO TI.ID II}{ANCIAL STATD}IDNTS (CONT'D)
(Ihese noles ore an integral part of and should be read in conjunctioit with /he fnancial stalements)

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS REGISTERED AT VSD AND NOT YET TRADING BY COMPANY

As at 3l/12/2024
\TND

As at 0l/01/2024
\T{D

Financial assets registered at VSD and not yet

traded, freely tt-ansferable

Total

UNREGISTERED FINANCIAL ASSETS AT VSD

8l.l 10.820.000 8l,l 10,820,000

81,110,820,000 g 1,1 10,820,000

23.

As at 37/12/2024

VND
As at 0110712024

\{D
Unlistedfunregistered financial assets for
trading where the issuing organization has

registered securities at VSD but the securities

company has not yet deposited them at VSD

Total 49,050,050,000 49,050,050,000

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS LTSTED/REGISTERED FOR TRADING AT VSD OF INVESTORS

As at3l/12/2024 As at 07107/2024

VND VND

49,050,050.000 49.050,050,000

Unrestricted financial assets

Restricted fi nancial assets

Mortgage financial assets

Blocked financial assets (*)
Financial assetes awaiting for settlement

Total

(*) As at 31/12/2024, in which:

- FLC: 811,973,590,000 'r'lVD
- GAB: 85,112,000,000 VND
- ART: 36,560,000,000 

"rND- ROS: 10,142,980,000 VI{D
- AMD: 48,000,000 VNID
- K[,]'; 'J.J,12U,000 VNI,

Unrestricted and non-traded financial assets

deposited at the VSD

Total

27,750,680,000 28,056,360,000

28,056,360,000

3 14, I 0 1,1 30,000

4,041,000,000

8.000,000,000

944,068,980,000

1,1 50,000,000

302,003,200,000

4,041.000,000

8.000,000,000

944,068,980,000

1,105,610,000

\'4\

l'
Itt-/\

:v1,271,367,770,Q00 1,259,218,790,000

- IIAI: 100;000 vNf)

'r< FINANCIAL ASSETS REGISTERED AT VSD AND NOT YET TRADED BY INVESTORS

As at31172/2024

VND
As at 07/07/2024

V}ID

33
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BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCKCOMPANY
25th floor, 265 Cau Giay office building,
Dich Vons. ward. Cau Giav district. Hanoi

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended
31 December ?024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(fhe-re notes are an inlegral part of and should be read in conjunction *-ith lheJinancial slatements)

26. CUSTO]VIER DEPOSITS

Ls at 3lll2/2024 As at 0l/Ol/2024
VND VND

Investor's deposits for securtities trading
activities managed by the Company

Clearing and settlement deposits for securities
tra4sactions of investors

Total

PAYABLES TO INVESTORS FOR SECURITIES
SECURITIES COMPANIES

Payablcs to iuvestors - luvcstors'dcposit for
securities trading activities managed by

lJFr r,ur i lics uiiriilrairy

Total

20,546,914,970 78,633,745,505

TRADING DEPOSITS MANAGED BY

As at37/12/2024 As at 07/Ol/2O24
VND \.ND

20,545,933,086 23,166,'737,594

20,545,93J,086 23,766;7J7,5E4

17,886,424.258

2.660.490,7 12

7 5,199,909,391

3,433,836,124

27.

28. DIYIDENDS, INTEREST INCOME FROM FVTPL, LOANS, HTI{, AFS

From financial assets at FVTPL

From HTM financial assets

From loans and receivables

TotaI

OPERATING COSTS OF PROVIDING SERVICES

Expenses for securities brokerage activities

Expenses for securilies custodian activitics

Total

30. FINANCIAL INCOME

Interest from non-fixed bank deposits

Total

Year 2024

VND

Year 2023

\T{D

1,904,529

4 5q6)64

3,121,7 50

? 355 4r0 4?5

6,500j793 2,359,155,175

29.

Year 2024

\ND
Year 2023

\ND

4
,*/
.. ?\

\C)

\

5,147,632,103 6,537,9:65,699

456,591,617 51r,s34,527
s,628223,121) 7 JJ19,500,276

Yerr 2024

VND

Year2023
\?{D

t,264,950,637 1,091,574;6:41

1,091,574,6411264,950,637



BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25'h floor, 265 Cau Ciay office building,
Dich Vong r.vard. Cau Giay district, Hanoi

FINANC IAL STATEIVIENTS
For tbe year ended
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NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These noles are an integral parf of and shoultl be read in conjunclion with thefnancial statements)

3I. MANAGIMRNT COSTS OF TTIR SF.CI IRITIF,S COMPANY

Year 2024

VND

Admin r strative staff expenses

Expense for office supplies

Depreciation expenses

Taxes, fees, and charges e.rpenses

Expense for external services

Other cash expenses

Total

OTHER EXPtrNSES

t0,640,945,448 9,809,451,619

1,122,910,500 991,913,460

3,000,000 3.000,000

Year 2023

VND

24,273,338 57,959,042

3_8t4,713,871 4,591,438,432

131,721,148 74,130,953

15,137,624,911 15,513,899,506

?)

Yeat'2024

Y'ND

1,266,500,000

300,000

Ycar 2023

YND

204,r88

Penalty

Other expenses

Total

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

1,266,800,000

2024

VND

2023
yriD

Profit or loss allocated to shareholders owning
common shares (VND)
Bonus and welfare fund

Weighied aye:.age number of shares outstanding during

the year

Earning per sharc (liND/CP) Qr6) (186)

(20,964,065,888)

96,922,s09

(18,020,411,91 l)

96,922,509

, -//

HIJ34. DEPARTMENT REPORT INFORMATION

The conrpany has tracked revenue and expenses by main business segments. However. other expenses
in the period camot be separated. Therefore, the Company does not present reporting information by
5e presenting this content does not materially affect the presentation ofthe
Fi scal year ending 3 I December 2024.

'a\



BOS SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
25th floor, 265 Cau Giay office building,
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FINANCIAL STATE]\IENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(lhese noles are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the f nancial slalements)

35. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITHRELATED PARTIES

The salaries and remuneration of the Board of Manasement and remunerations of the
Directors during the year are as follovv's:

Position

Y ear 2021

YND

Board of

Year 202J

vM)

Salar,v Remuneratjon of lllanagement

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Le

Remuneration ofBOD
Ms. Pham ThiThanl Mai

Ms Le Th Truc Quynh

Mr. Le Ba Phuong

Mr. Trinh Van Nam

Mt. Ngu.v'vn Thanh Can

l!{r. Nguy'en Thanh Le

Total

Ceneral Director

Chairwoman

Chairwoman

Member of BOD

Mcmbcr of BOD

Member of DOD

Mumbcr olB0l)

I,194,000,000

l, I 94,000,000

1,126,666,66E

1,066,666,669

I 80,000,000

I 80,000.000

625,625,000

625,625,000

t22E?6;6,836

73.333,333

812,592,594

49.500.000

90.000,000

I 3 1,250,000

4 r.59t).909

2,620,666,668 1,953,991,936

In addition to rnembers of the Board of Directors, Boald of GeleralDirecturs, other Realaled
pltiYt ul lhu Uulupun5,r

No Company
I FLCHomes Real Estate Development and

lnvestrnent Joint Stock Company
? Bamboo Airways Joint Stock Company

Transactions with Related Parties

Revenue

- Bamboo Airways Joint Stock Company

Balances with Related Parties

Receivables for services provided by securities companies

- Barhboo Ainvays Jojnt Stock Company

Stocks purchase price

- FLCHOMES Real estate Development and Investment Joint Stock

Company

ll0;000;000

1 10,000,000

As at3lll2/2024 As at0ll0lD024
VND VND

Relationship
Related parties w'ith
of Directors
Related parties with
Board of Directors

members of the Board

the Chainvoman of the

Year 2024

VND

Year 2023

VND

NG

PI
;il(
iOl

36. GOING CONCERN

As al 3l December 2024,the Company's accumulated loss is 859,993,479,081 VnTD, the Company's
operations are also shrinking, and the Company's potential obligations according to the First Instance
Judgment No. 426/2024l HS:ST dated 05 August 2024 of the People's Court of Hanoi City has not been
tried according to appeal procedures (Ittrote No. 37). The Board of Directors of the Company affirms that
the Conpany is focusing on resolving related issues so that the Company can operaie normally. The
cunent financial situation of the Company is fully capable of paying debts. , therefore the accompanf ing
financial statements are still prepared on the basis of the assumption of continuous operations.

50,755,000

50,755,000

72,999,000,000

72,999,000,000

72,999,000,000

72,999,000,000

36
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(Ihese noles are an integral parl of andshould be read inconjunctionv,ith thefnancialstalements)

37. OTHER INFORMATION

Fraudulenf appropriation of assets and manipulation of the stock market

The Company is involved in the criminal case of Fraud, Market Manipulation, Deliberate Disclosure of
Ialsc lifurrrraliurt ur Currcealrrtent of Information in SecurJries Activitieis, and Abuse of Power during
Duty Execution, which occurred at FLC Group Joint Stock Company aad related entities ("the Case").
On 28 June 2024,lhe People's Court of Hanoi issued Decision No.388/2024IQDSXST-HS to bring the
case to a preliminary trial and announced the trial opening for the case of Trinh Van Quyel and
accomplices at FLC Group Joint Stock Company and related entities on22 luly 2024. On 05 August
2024- the People's Court of Hanoi announced Preliminary Judgment No. 42612024IIJS-ST, in which
BOS Securities Joint Stock Company must retnrn the illegally gained amount from market manipulation
activities of VND 42,471,521,663 to the state treasury. On l4 August 2024,rhe Company submitted an
appeal rcgarding the determination of the illegally gained amount to the People's Court of Hanoi and the
High People's Court in Hanoi, requesting the Case be reviewed through an appellate procedure. As of
the date of this report, ths Case has not been rbviewed through an appellate procedure, so the Company's
Managcmcnt [-]oard contiirues to,lnoniftrr thc dcvclopmcnts and rvill rneke adju-stmcrrts uccording to the
appr:llate judgment of the Lrompetent state authority.

Additionally, the financial statements for the fiscal year ending on 3l Decemher 2024, inclrrde certain
ilerrls relatctl to the Case, speclflcally as lbllows:

/ The Company's direct investments in stocks related to the Case (FLC, GAB, ROS, HAI, KLF) as
of December 31, 2024, after revaluation, are approximatel,v \,ND 9.2 billion (as of January 1,
2024, approximately yND 9.5 billion), with the original cost being approximately VND 87.2
billion.

'/ The margin loan balance for the GAB stock as of January 1,2024, aad December 31,2024, is
VND I 14.4 billion.

slatrc of control, reslricled operations, and reduction of business activities'

- According to Decision No. 864/QD-SGDHN dated l8 August 2023, by the Hanoi Stock
Exchange: ART shares of BOS Securities Joint Stock Company were suspended from trading from
25 August 2023, due to information disclosure violations.

- According to Decision No. 70IQD-SGDVN dated 18 August 2023, by the Viernam Stock
Exchange: BOS Securities Joint Stock Company was suspended liom purchasing securities on the
listed securities market, the registered trading market, and the deriyatives market at the Ho Chi
Minh Cify Stock Exchange and the Hanoi Stock Exchange.

' According to the 2024 Annual General Meeling of Shareholders Resolution No. 02l2024,NQ-
DHDCD-BOS dated 09 April 2024, the General Meeting of Shareholders approved the withdrawal
of the Company's securities underwriting operations (according to Proposal No- 06/202.4/TTr-
HDQT-BOS dated 05 April2024). On l6 April 2024.20 June2024, and 05 November 2024,the
Company submitted a request to amend the business esrablishment and securities trading license to
rvithdraw the securities underwriting operations to the State Securities Commission.

- According to Decision No. 549/QD-UBCK dated 13 May 2024, by the State Securities
Commission: The certificate of eligibility to conduct derivatives securities trading and the
qerJificate of eligibilify to provide clearing and settlqment services for derivatives secufities
granted to the Company were revoked.

- On l1 October 2024,the State Securities Commission issued Decision No. 111S/QD-UBCK on
placing BOS Securities Joint Stock Company under control.

\\
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCTAL STATEMtrNTS (CONT'.D)
(These notes are 4n itile gra/ parl of and should be read in conjunction v,ith the financial stotements)

38. COMPARATIVEFTGURES

Comparafive figures are those from the audited financial statements for the year ended 3l
December 2023.

t
!'

Ban Ha Trang
Preparer

Le Thi Thuong
Chief accountant Chalrwoman
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